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Public Participation 

Introduction 
In September 2022, the San Diego Association of Governments (SANDAG) Board directed 
staff to prepare an amendment to the 2021 Regional Plan (Amendment). The proposed 
Amendment was available for public review and comment from June 13, 2023, through 
August 8, 2023, to solicit public input on the proposed Amendment. During the public review 
period, four public meetings were held: a public hearing on June 23, 2023, and three virtual 
workshops on July 18, July 31, and August 8, 2023.  

SANDAG also received comments on the proposed Amendment through an online 
comment response form; and via e-mail. A total of 56 public comments were received that 
commented on the proposed Amendment via the online comment response form, email, or 
letter, which are included in this document.  

Responses 
The following section provides SANDAG responses to the comments received organized by 
the following topic areas:   

• Opposition to the Regional RUC  
• Support for the Regional RUC  
• Requesting Clarification on the Impacts of Removing the Regional RUC  
• Social Equity  
• Land Uses, Specific Transportation Network Elements, and Electric Vehicle Concerns  
• Opposition to SANDAG  
• Public Outreach Efforts 
• Revenues and Costs  

SANDAG also responded to selected questions received during the June 23, 2023, public 
hearing in a July 13, 2023, memorandum to the Board of Directors. The public hearing 
transcript and memorandum are included in this Attachment C. 

Opposition to the Regional RUC 

SANDAG received multiple comments expressing opposition to the regional RUC. Most of 
these comments opposed any additional fees associated with driving and several expressed 
concern over the potential financial hardship of a regional RUC. Some commentors also 
expressed concerns over tracking people’s movements and the regional RUC limiting 
mobility and creating “15-minute cities.”  

SANDAG appreciates the feedback received on concerns about additional costs. At the 
direction of the SANDAG Board of Directors, the 2030 implementation of the regional RUC is 
proposed to be removed from the 2021 Regional Plan, and so these concerns are addressed 
by the Amendment itself. 

In response to comments received about tracking people’s movements, any program or 
policy with the potential for privacy impacts would need to satisfy California’s extensive 
privacy laws and regulations. However, because this Amendment proposes to remove the 
regional RUC from the 2021 Regional Plan, these concerns are addressed by the Amendment 
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itself. Similarly, neither the 2021 Regional Plan nor the regional RUC were intended to confine 
residents to a limited geographical area.  While 15-minute cities are a planning concept for 
creating convenient access to resources within a walkable or bikeable range of 15 minutes to 
expand access to resources, SANDAG did not use the 15-minute city concept in developing 
either the 2021 Regional Plan or the Amendment. 

Support for the Regional RUC 

SANDAG also received multiple comments in support of the regional RUC. These comments 
expressed concern over the VMT, GHG, and air quality implications of removing the regional 
RUC and that the Amendment was setting the region back in achieving GHG and air quality 
goals and creating future environmental and financial risks for our region. Other 
commentors expressed concern over how removing the regional RUC could limit the 
expansion of transit options in our region.  Additional comments expressed support for a 
modified regional RUC that applied to electric vehicles but not gas-powered vehicles or for a 
means-based regional RUC that integrated personal privacy protections. 

SANDAG appreciates the feedback received on concerns about the adverse environmental 
impacts of removing the regional RUC; these are disclosed in the SEIR that SANDAG has 
prepared for the proposed Amendment, and will be considered by the Board of Directors 
prior to their taking action on the proposed Amendment.  As discussed in Section 4 of the 
Amendment, the removal of the regional RUC would decrease the cost to operate an 
automobile, resulting in an increase in single occupancy drivers. Consequently, the 
Amendment would result in an increase in VMT, GHG emissions, and air pollutants from 
tailpipe emissions compared to the adopted 2021 Regional Plan. Similarly, while the air 
quality impacts of removing the regional RUC do not rise to a level of regional significance, 
there are greater emissions of criteria pollutants and new or substantially more severe 
significant air quality impacts under the Amendment than under the 2021 Regional Plan. The 
Amendment would expose new receptors to substantial concentrations of toxic air 
contaminant emissions and increase the incremental area of threshold exceedance for new 
land uses. Although the Amendment has greater GHG and air quality impacts than the 2021 
Regional Plan, the Amendment does still meet SB 375 regional GHG emissions reduction 
targets, and state and federal air quality standards. The SANDAG Board of Directors has 
proposed that the regional RUC be removed from the 2021 Regional Plan. However, there are 
many policies and programs to reduce VMT, GHG, and improve regional air quality, and 
SANDAG is committed to identifying the best policies for our region that will meet required 
state and federal standards in the 2025 Regional Plan. SANDAG will be holding multiple 
public outreach events throughout the County to ensure that interested members of the 
public can understand and provide feedback on the development of the 2025 Regional Plan. 

Requesting Clarification on the Impacts of Removing the Regional RUC 

SANDAG received comments requesting clarification about the impact of removing the 
regional RUC on implementation of the proposed state RUC, on funding opportunities for 
the region, and how removing the regional RUC impacts the 2025 Regional Plan.  

SANDAG appreciates the feedback received requesting clarification on the impacts of 
removing the regional RUC. The proposed state RUC is entirely separate from the regional 
RUC. The proposed Amendment would remove the regional RUC from the 2021 Regional 
Plan but has no impact on the proposed state RUC, which is outside of SANDAG’s authority. 
The adopted 2021 Regional Plan assumes the San Diego region will receive future revenues 
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resulting from a state RUC, which is still in the pilot program phase. Discussion of the state 
RUC remains unchanged from the adopted 2021 Regional Plan.  The proposed Amendment 
assumes a state RUC of 0.7 cents ($2020) starting in 2030 and increasing to 1.2 cents by 2050 
to cover the funding gap created as fuel taxes diminish over time due to greater fuel 
efficiency and a shift to zero emission vehicles.  The State has not released a start date for the 
state RUC; however, 2030 is consistent with the assumption made by other California MPOs.. 
More information on the status of the state RUC can be found here: California Road Charge 
program.   

At present, SANDAG is not aware of any risks to local or regional state and federal funding 
eligibility resulting from removing the regional RUC.  Adequate funding sources have been 
identified to implement the adopted 2021 Regional Plan without funding from a regional 
RUC.  

The 2025 Regional Plan is SANDAG’s next major update of the region’s long range 
transportation planning document and is separate from the Amendment to the 2021 
Regional Plan. SANDAG will be holding multiple public outreach events throughout the 
County to ensure that interested members of the public can provide feedback on the 
development of the 2025 Regional Plan. A concept for the 2025 Regional Plan without the 
regional RUC will be presented later this year.  

Social Equity 

Comments were received expressing concerns over the broad social equity impacts of 
removing the regional RUC, the impacts associated with PM 2.5 emissions on disadvantaged 
communities specifically and San Diego residents generally, and the need to develop and 
fund affordable and accessible public transit.  

SANDAG appreciates the feedback shared over the social equity impacts of removing the 
regional RUC. As discussed in Attachment 1 to the Errata: Amendment Social Equity Analysis, 
the proposed Amendment would not result in either a disparate impact or disproportionate 
effect on disadvantaged communities in the San Diego region. Additionally, the proposed 
Amendment would result in a less than 2 percent change in all social equity performance 
measures compared to the adopted 2021 Regional Plan. Specific to PM 2.5 emissions, there is 
less than a 1 percent change between the adopted 2021 Regional Plan and the Amendment 
(Attachment 1 to the Errata: Amendment Social Equity Analysis, Table SE4-20). The adopted 
2021 Regional Plan also identified specific transportation strategies to reduce pollution 
exposure in disadvantaged communities, which are included in Appendix H: Social Equity: 
Engagement and Analysis of the adopted 2021 Regional Plan. These strategies remain 
unchanged with the Amendment. 

As to suggestions for future transit projects, the 2025 Regional Plan is SANDAG’s next major 
update of the region’s long range transportation planning document and is separate from 
the Amendment to the 2021 Regional Plan. SANDAG will be holding multiple public outreach 
events throughout the County to ensure that interested members of the public can provide 
feedback on the development of the 2025 Regional Plan. There will be opportunities for the 
public to suggest measures for SANDAG and transit agencies to consider that would increase 
opportunities for affordable and accessible public transit. 

https://caroadcharge.com/
https://caroadcharge.com/
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Land Uses, Specific Transportation Network Elements, and Electric Vehicle Concerns  

SANDAG received several comments on various planning assumptions, including land uses, 
regional housing issues, the need to provide greater funding for transit generally and for 
specific transportation network elements, and concern over potential risks associated with e-
bikes and electric vehicle batteries.  

SANDAG appreciates the feedback shared on land use, regional housing, potential transit 
investments, specific transportation network concerns, and e-bike and electric vehicle 
concerns as part of the Amendment public comment process. At the direction of the 
SANDAG Board of Directors, the Amendment is narrowly focused on removing the regional 
RUC while meeting state and federal requirements. The Amendment includes no other 
change to land use or to the transportation projects, programs, and policies identified in the 
2021 Regional Plan. The 2025 Regional Plan is SANDAG’s next major update of the region’s 
long range transportation planning document and is separate from the Amendment to the 
2021 Regional Plan. SANDAG will be holding multiple public outreach events throughout the 
County to ensure that interested members of the public can provide feedback on the 
development of the 2025 Regional Plan. There will be opportunities for the public to suggest 
changes to the adopted 2021 Regional Plan to address concerns that are outside the scope of 
the proposed Amendment. 

Opposition to SANDAG 

SANDAG received multiple comments expressing dislike for SANDAG generally as an agency, 
disapproval of the weighted vote, and dissatisfaction with SANDAG leadership. Other 
comments accused SANDAG of using the regional RUC specifically, and the regional 
planning process generally, to implement a United Nations-driven “globalist” agenda with 
the goal of restricting mobility, eliminating cars, and enslaving San Diego residents.  

SANDAG is aware that there are multiple views in our community on the work SANDAG does 
and appreciates the public interest in providing feedback, regardless of whether it is 
supportive or critical.  

SANDAG strives to optimize internal procedures with a goal of increased efficiency, 
transparency, and accuracy. These efforts have focused on our workforce (our people), along 
with the processes and technology used to complete agency work. SANDAG regularly 
undergoes required audits administered by our federal and state funding agencies. These 
audits are conducted in accordance with federal and state laws and often result in necessary 
process changes and improvements to ensure the agency meets our fiduciary 
responsibilities.  

SANDAG’s weighted voting process is the result of a state legislative reform under Assembly 
Bill (AB) 805, which was signed into law by Governor Jerry Brown in 2017. AB 805 modified 
SANDAG’s weighted voting process for the 21-member board, which granted proportionally 
more votes for the most populated jurisdictions in the SANDAG region (California Legislative 
Information, 2017).  

SANDAG does not act at the direction of the United Nations or the World Economic Forum or 
implement measures developed by these organizations. SANDAG, acting as both a 
metropolitan planning organization (MPO) and a council of governments, is required to 
comply with federal and state laws. Under federal law, SANDAG is mandated to develop and 
implement a long-range Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB805
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB805
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(RTP/SCS) every four years. That RTP/SCS process must be completed, including a 
demonstration that the RTP/SCS meets federal air quality standards and a federal social 
equity analysis, so that the San Diego region will remain eligible to receive federal 
transportation funding. Under state law, SANDAG is required to comply with Assembly Bill 
(AB) 805 and Senate Bill (SB) 375, both of which require RTP/SCSs to address GHG emissions 
reduction targets set by CARB and to include strategies that provide for mode shift to public 
transportation. The goal of the RTP/SCS is not to “price people out of their cars” or make it 
impossible for individuals to drive, it is to comply with state and federal requirements while 
also making our transportation system more convenient, safe, healthy, and equitable with 
various options for all users to travel to their destinations.  

Public Outreach Efforts 

SANDAG received comments requesting that meetings be scheduled at times when the 
public can attend. SANDAG appreciates the feedback received on the public outreach for the 
proposed Amendment. Several public meetings were held for the public to provide 
comments on the proposed Amendment. A public hearing was held on June 23, 2023, at 9:00 
am during the Board meeting; Board meetings are regularly held on the 2nd and 4th Fridays 
of every month. The full year meeting schedule for the Board, Policy Advisory Committees, 
and Working Groups is published in advance on the SANDAG website. Committee meetings 
are recorded and published for public viewing on the SANDAG Meetings YouTube channel.  

In addition, three virtual workshops were also held on July 18 at 12:30 pm, July 31 at 5:15 pm, 
and August 3 8:30 am. The virtual workshops were held via Zoom at different times of the day 
to accommodate the general public. Meeting-related resources including the presentation, 
meeting videos, and agenda are available to the public on the SANDAG website.  

Revenues and Costs 

SANDAG received comments related to the revenue estimates used to develop the proposed 
Amendment and implement transportation infrastructure throughout the region. 
Commentors expressed confusion over how the Amendment would fully implement the 2021 
Regional Plan without regional RUC funds, and criticism of the explanation of revenues in the 
Amendment and the absence of updated project costs. SANDAG also received comments 
objecting to the cost to prepare the Amendment itself. 

SANDAG appreciates the feedback shared on revenues and costs. The regional RUC was not 
intended to be implemented until 2030, and as such was only a revenue source for the final 
20 years of the 2021 Regional Plan. The regional RUC was projected to generate $14.2 billion 
in revenues between 2030 and 2050 under the 2021 Regional Plan and was anticipated to 
support transportation expenditures between 2030 and 2050, in combination with several 
other revenue sources. These regional RUC revenues have been excluded from the revenue 
projections in the Amendment.  

In updating revenue assumptions for the proposed Amendment, adequate funding sources 
have been identified to implement the adopted 2021 Regional Plan without funding from a 
regional RUC. SANDAG included funding from the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act 
(IIJA, also known as the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law), which was signed into law in 
November 2021. The Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) authorized $1.2 trillion for 
transportation and infrastructure spending with $550 billion of that figure going toward 
“new” investments and programs. The historic level of infrastructure investment from the 
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federal and state government in the early phase years of the 2021 Regional Plan was 
unknown and underestimated. The federal and state discretionary programs near-term 
estimates have been updated to assume the amount of federal and state dollars the region 
will receive for each local TransNet dollar based on prior years. The total estimate of near-
term State and Federal Discretionary Programs resulting from IIJA is $6.35 billion.  

Additionally, SANDAG has already received $650 million above what was anticipated 
between Fiscal Years 2021-2023 in the Amendment. The Amendment assumed $950 million 
in discretionary funding revenue ($507 million in state funding and $441 million in federal 
funding) between Fiscal Years 2021-2023. During that same period SANDAG has received $1.6 
billion in discretionary funding revenue ($876 million in state funding and $766 million in 
federal funding). 

Concern was expressed specifically over the assumptions for future New Starts/Small Starts 
projects. Those assumptions are based on SANDAG’s historical success in receiving New 
Starts funding and on the pipeline of eligible projects over the 30-year planning period. 
Assumptions around New Starts/Small Starts projects were not revised in the Amendment. 

Some commentors asked how SANDAG could be assured of funding for the 2021 Regional 
Plan and how projects would be prioritized for funding if there are funding shortfalls. Federal 
regulations require that SANDAG provide estimates of costs and revenues that are 
reasonably expected to be available, and may also include recommendations on new 
financing strategies and funding sources.1 The revenue assumptions were updated to 
remove the regional RUC and because federal regulations require an amendment to reflect 
revenue sources that are subsequently removed or substantially reduced.2 This also included 
the projected sales tax measure in the 2021 Regional Plan. These revenues were replaced by 
funding sources as described above. 

Project prioritization under the Amendment remains unchanged from the 2021 Regional 
Plan. While funding shortfalls are not anticipated, it is worth noting that there will be more 
unknowns for revenues and costs in the outer years of the Regional Plan. SANDAG is typically 
required to update the Regional Plan every four years to account for the changes in funding 
outlooks, priorities, and planning assumptions, and will update priorities, costs, and revenues 
as part of the 2025 Regional Plan. 

As to costs, these are reflected in 2020 and year of expenditure dollars in Attachment 1 to the 
Amendment: Errata to the 2021 Regional Plan. Generally, planning assumptions must be 
updated at least every five years according to FHWA Guidance for the Use of Latest Planning 
Assumptions in Transportation Conformity Determinations.3 Consistent with the 
transportation conformity rules and regulations, SANDAG consulted with federal agencies 
early in the Amendment development process, and the latest planning assumptions have 
been used for the Amendment. The cost information from the 2021 Regional Plan was the 
latest available at the time SANDAG began its transportation conformity analysis for the 
Amendment. 

 
1 23 CFR 450.324(f)(11) 

2 23 CFR 450.324(f)(11)(viii) 

3 EPA420-B-08-901 
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Project prioritization under the Amendment remains unchanged from the 2021 Regional 
Plan. It is worth noting that there will be more unknowns for revenues and costs in the outer 
years of the Regional Plan. SANDAG is typically required to update the Regional Plan every 
four years to account for the changes in funding outlooks, priorities, and planning 
assumptions, and will update priorities, costs, and revenues as part of the 2025 Regional Plan. 

Related to the cost of preparing the Amendment, itself, certain technical work requiring 
consultant support was necessary for the Supplemental Environmental Impact Report. 
However, much of the remaining work was completed with existing in-house staff and 
resources to minimize the net cost to prepare the Amendment. 



   

 

Attachment C: Public Participation 10 

Memorandum to the Board of Directors 
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Public Hearing Transcript 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Moving on to item number 16. This is a time and place set for public hearing on the draft 
amendment for the 2021 Regional Plan. Thank you to all the team that was here for all the 
other items. Appreciate that. So we’re going to have a staff presentation that is going to be 
provided to all of us. And then we’re going to have public comment. After public comment, 
we’re going to hear comments from the Board. So if you have comments remember use your 
clicker, and then we’re going to close the public hearing.  

I want to just emphasize two things. This is the 2021 Regional Plan not the 2025 Regional 
Plan. There is no action to be taken today, and it’s just an opportunity for us to be able to 
have comments and discussion to focus on the draft amendment in front of us. We’re going 
to continue our conversation on workshops for the 2025 Regional Plan at our next board 
meeting. And then also a reminder for those of you who want to speak to submit your slips to 
the clerk of the board and raise your hand online before the end of the press staff 
presentation. And so with that I’ll turn it over to Keith. Thank you.  

Keith Greer: 

Thank you, Chair, and good morning board. My name is Keith Greer. I'm one of the Regional 
Planning managers, and we have a very short presentation. So, last September, the board 
discussed options to remove the regional road user charge, otherwise known as the RUC, 
that would've gone in effect in 2030 from the '21 Regional Plan. The board selected option 
two, to prepare a focused amendment to the '21 Regional Plan without the regional road user 
charge and prepared a supplemental California Environmental Quality Act analysis. 

As discussed at the board meeting, option two included the removal of the regional RUC, 
updated revenue assumptions resulting from the removal of the RUC, and other changes 
since the adoption of the '21 Regional Plan. And also, no changes to the transportation 
network, no changes in land use, and no changes to any of the programs, policies, or projects 
included in the Regional Plan itself. 

The proposed amendment and supporting documents are completed and they've been 
posted to the SANDAG website for review. The amendment includes a 14-page narrative, in 
both English and Spanish, that describes removal of the road user charge and its effects on 
meeting our greenhouse gas targets, our revenues, our network transportation performance 
and transportation conformity. 

Supporting documents and information includes a 37-page Errata, which shows in a 
strikeout underlying all the changes that need to be made in the '21 Regional Plan to remove 
the regional road user charge, and updated 19-page social equity analysis, and a 52-page air 
quality conformity analysis. The amendment is available for public review through August 
8th, as well as supporting materials. 

Moving forward onto the greenhouse gas targets and what happens when you remove the 
regional road user charge. So, the Sustainable Communities and Climate Protection Act 
better known as SB 375, is a state law that requires CARB to set greenhouse gas reduction 
targets for each MPO. For SANDAG, as the MPO for this region, our carbon-established target 
as 19% reductions of GHG per capita as measured against the 2005 baseline. 
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The '21 Regional Plan exceeded that target and achieved a 20.4% reduction. The removal of 
the RUC results in an increase of 1.3 million vehicle miles traveled per day, and the 
amendment result in 18.6% reduction. So the Regional Plan was higher, the amendment is 
lower. But when rounded up per CARB's own guidelines, it meets the 19% reduction target. In 
addition to the reduction target, CARB will look at the policy commitments made in the plan 
itself. 

SANDAG staff have been keeping our CARB contacts up to date on the status of the 
amendment it proceeds, and to date, we have heard nothing that indicates that the CARB 
will not approve the amendment as proposed. According to revenues, we have both 
reductions in revenues and also increases in revenues, coming from, since last time the point 
when Regional Plan was adopted. For reductions, the removal of the regional road usage 
charge will result in $14.3 billion reduction in revenues. 

In addition, local revenues from a sales tax measure envisioned to be occurring in 2023, in the 
Regional Plan, have been delayed to 2025. Increases includes TransNet. TransNet has been 
revised to reflect the board's own adopted April 22nd estimates, based upon higher than 
anticipated sales tax revenues. And the last two items are dealing with state and federal 
discretionary programs. 

So since the adoption of the Regional Plan, there's been a tremendous increase in 
infrastructure funding coming out of Washington and Sacramento, coming from the 
infrastructure investment in Jobs Act or IIJA and other state sources that were not known at 
the time that the Regional Plan was adopted. The net result of all these increases in 
reductions is a $17.9 billion reductions in revenues for the amendment. 

I should note that all these dollars are in 2020 dollars and are consistent with the '21 Regional 
Plan and reflect the revenues assumptions at the time the board direct us to move forward 
with the removal of the RUC. Revenues in the proposed plan would decrease by 7.9 billion, as 
I mentioned, to 165 billion. This is still sufficient to cover the 163 billion-dollar cost of projects 
and programs included in the Regional Plan as envisioned, with a $2.4 billion buffer. 

There are few other considerations to the board should consider. The amendment to 
Regional Plan would be consistent with the ozone budgets established for the regions. In 
addition, the amendment result in minor changes to network performance measures 
established in the '21 Regional Plan, with differences being less than 1%. The amendment 
would not result in a disparity impact or disproportionate effect on disadvantaged 
communities. 

Finally, moving to the timelines and next steps. The amendment and supporting information 
has been released for public review, which will end on August 8th. A supplemental EIR will be 
released in July for a 45-day public review. In addition today's public hearing, staff will be 
hosting outreach events in July and August to get more feedback on the amendment and 
the supplemental EIR. 

In September, the amendment and supplemental EIR will be revised based on comments 
received from the public and finalized for board consideration. All comments received will be 
addressed in writing and provided to the board, along with a final amendment and final 
supplemental EIR for your consideration. We'd hope to get back to the board in September, 
but the air quality modeling required for the supplemental EIR has taken longer. Based upon 
the number, timing, and complexity of the comments that we receive, it's estimated the final 
amendment and supplemental EIR will be brought back to the board business meeting in 
October. 
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If the board approves the amendment, it would be submitted to federal and state agencies 
for approval and the transportation conformity determination, and for CARB's approval, the 
Sustainable Communities Strategy. CARB's approval of the Sustainable Communities 
Strategy, which includes that 19% reduction target, takes several months to complete and 
may involve back-and-forth questions between the staff. That concludes staff's presentation. 
We'd be happy to answer any questions. Thank you. 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Thank you for your presentation. We're going to turn it over to Francesca for a public 
comment. Then I'll just remind my colleagues if you want to speak on this item, feel free to 
click your clicker I guess. 

Francesca Webb, Clerk to the Board: 

Thank you Chairwoman. We have a total of 12 public comments on this item. We'll start with 
Consuelo and then go to Mary Davis. 

Mary Davis: 

Thank... There is a... any roads charge... want to impose them elsewhere. Did you hear the first 
part or could I start again? 

Speaker 5: 

Start her time. 

Mary Davis: 

Can you start where- 

Speaker 5: 

Start her time. 

Mary Davis: 

Okay. Thank you, I'll start again. Mary Davis here. First, no to any road usage charge, road 
charge, mile tax, whatever you want to call it, no, no, no. And no to any tolls or new fees or 
charges. You're openly advocating to retire the State Route 125 South Bay Expressway toll 
early, yet hypocritically, want to impose them elsewhere. So no to that. And we reject most of 
all the paradigm shift that both SANDAG and the state of California are trying to implement. 

Going from a public benefit model of funding our roads to infrastructure to a user pay 
system, which inevitably will involve telematics and tracking, regardless of whether the 
government does it or it goes to some third-party platform. At its very core, the concept of 
tracking people's movements is antithetical to both our national and our state constitutions, 
as well as the core American principles of individual autonomy and privacy. Thank you. 

Francesca Webb, Clerk to the Board: 

Our next speaker will be Alan C., who will be followed by Paul Henkin. 



   

 

Attachment C: Public Participation 17 

Alan C.: 

Hello. Being a Navy guy, I always show up early. I was downstairs about 7:00 this morning. I 
saw your caterer holding the truck downstairs. Now imagine if she has to pay a road use tax. 
How much more would them pastries cost me as a taxpayer to serve you guys your free 
donuts? How much more would that taco shop I mentioned last... couple weeks ago, now is 
$12 for a breakfast burrito. How well would his overhead be with the price of electricity, price 
everything else, price of gas, and now the delivery trucks to deliver the groceries, goods he 
needs to prepare that breakfast burrito. 

No, the road use tax. And as he mentioned, you don't need the road use tax, it covers it. Now 
it meets your climate footprint, as the electric car takes over, that will meet your climate 
agenda, what do you want to call it, because nobody's going to take your empty bus. Just 
look out your window, empty bus, empty bus, empty bus. You put more empty bus, that idiot 
on the telephone said, "We need a bus every 10 minutes." How many more empty bus you 
going to put out there? What's the climate footprint of all them empty buses not 
transporting people, when my right to actually drive from my home to Costco, anywhere I 
need to go, I can do that. How many on board here took the bus? Nobody, huh? And yet, 
you're going to push buses? I yield back. 

Francesca Webb, Clerk to the Board: 

Our next speaker is Paul Henkin, who will be followed by Truth. 

Paul Henkin: 

This so-called amendment has no mandatory language, like add or delete. SANDAG is 
assuming it will get $165 billion in federal money from the Infrastructure Investments and 
Jobs Act, signed into law in November, 2021 from page four there. It's hard... and it still has a 
few other revenue sources. Since the plan needs 163 billion, it doesn't seem to need any kind 
of VMT or RUC. 

It looks like SANDAG has been playing with us since 2021, claiming it needs some kind of tax, 
road user charge, or VMT, another reason not to trust it. Then it plans to disrupt our schools to 
put this agenda, saying reach out to families through K to 12 school functions or tap into local 
high schools and colleges, universities to involve youth, either directly or through awarded- 

Francesca Webb, Clerk to the Board: 

Time has expired. 

Paul Henkin: 

... [inaudible] tax and programs. 

Francesca Webb, Clerk to the Board: 

Our next speaker is Truth. 

Paul Henkin: 

Disband SANDAG. And- 
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Francesca Webb, Clerk to the Board: 

Your time has expired. After Truth will be Dr. Timothy Bilash. 

Truth: 

Oh. All right. The fact that it costs $1.5 million just to amend this horrible Regional Plan is 
ridiculous. I demand a people's refund of the whole thing, especially since the 3.3 cents per 
mile road user charge was fraudulently suggested as necessary, but no matter what factor is 
used to tax people off the roads, whether it's hours traveled, distance traveled, per ride, or 
restricted vehicles, hours or zones, it's all to implement the totalitarian 15-minute city plan 
that just happens to be popping up all over the world at the same time. 

Even this item says, "Percentage of residents that can access retail and parks within 15 
minutes." And just as the World Economic Forum wrote in their Sustainable Road Transport 
and Pricing whitepaper, "As prices increase for road use, individuals will be forced to choose 
alternative paths or times, or walking and biking. Personal car usage and even public 
transport could quickly become for the elite few." And voting on charges with the vote center 
model corruption, forget compromising or voting. I just say no to all Regional Plans. Thank 
you. 

Francesca Webb, Clerk to the Board: 

Our next speaker is Dr. Timothy Bilash, who will be followed by Mark. 

Dr. Timothy Bilash: 

Good morning, Board. I will try to make this brief. I have two slides to share, if you could 
remote me. We're not doing enough. Kudos to the committee, to SANDAG for again taking 
the impossible and doing what was asked. But we're doing less, not more and what it was 
before is not enough, and so, I have two slides to share. To just to bring this, I'm a physician, 
OB-GYN, women's doctor, for 32 years, and a scientist. And I should do something? 

Speaker 5: 

Read his time. 

Dr. Timothy Bilash: 

Is my screen being shared? Yes. So a new paper, pulled it this morning. I'm sorry and this is 
the problem, the complexity of science, joint effect of ambient particle matter 2.5 micron 
exposure with vitamin B12 during pregnancy. And the slide I offer and I sent the link to the 
board this morning, shows a two to three times risk of diabetes in pregnancy when you 
combine particulate matter 2.5 with a vitamin B12 deficiency. Particulate matter comes from 
the tires in your car. You have to replace them every few years? Well, that goes into the air 
and that goes into our lungs and it goes into the babies. Thank you for listening. 

Francesca Webb, Clerk to the Board: 

Our next speaker will be Mark, who will be followed by Andres Wong. 
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Mark: 

Mark. In this video, Katie explains what's happening in Oxford right now. Are they limiting 
people's movement? There's no excuse for limiting people's movement. It's literally a 
totalitarian gesture to enslave people. And when you've got people who are disarmed, like we 
are here in California, whose gun would be lucky to shoot accurately across the street at their 
neighbor's door, not that anyone would want to do that, and they can't travel freely, you can 
do anything to them, anything at all. 

And they are in the UK. That's why the people revolted. You people need to see these videos. 
This is on BitChute. This one, you can just Google. Oxfordshire, and see on the city council's 
website what they're planning for you. Next, what they're doing there, right next to London. 
This is a worldwide movement. You need to see these videos. Rosa Corey is a Democrat. I'm 
not Democrat or Republican. Both sides screw us in different ways. They take turns. This one 
is about how they're replacing our government with unelected council- 

Francesca Webb, Clerk to the Board: 

Time has expired. Our next speaker is Andres Wong, who will be followed by The Original Dra. 

Andres Wong: 

Good morning. Thank you all for being here and thank you for this chance to hear my voice. I 
am from the supposedly beautiful city of Chula Vista and I speak now about the RUC, 
originally named mileage tax, because it is a tax. For the Union Tribune, earlier this week after 
the $4.50 we pay at the pump, $1.19 already goes to taxes and fees. We are already taxed to 
the hilt. I therefore ask all of you to remove and trash the RUC. This morning, there's obviously 
animosity towards all of you, please think why. I pray to our Lord Jesus that you listen to your 
constituents. Thank you. 

Francesca Webb, Clerk to the Board: 

And we're going to move on to Zoom where we have four remaining speakers. The first will 
be The Original Dra, followed by Carolina Martinez. 

The Original Dra: 

Amen brother. Yeah, so I love how you guys think that taking $14.3 billion from the people 
that are already in dire straights could ever have been a good idea. You have to be 
brainwashed to believe that, because if you just divide that by the amount of people in the 
county, that's $4,230 every year, which is $353 extra a month. That's if every person had a car, 
which isn't true. So that means those would be astronomical charges to people that can't 
even afford to buy food, to live in a house, to do all the things that you guys are forcing them 
into. 

This is so ridiculous. And then you want to spend 1.5 million to amend this? You guys act... 
Man, it's so sad. You never listen to the people. You're listening to these globalists and you're 
pushing this down the pipe, and it's all to push us into a 15-minute city. It's clear as day. If you 
cared about the people, you would look at that astronomical amount and be like, "Oh, my 
gosh, we can't do this to the people." You better never do it to the people. 

Francesca Webb, Clerk to the Board: 

Our next speaker will be Carolina Martinez, followed by Mike Bullock. 
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Carolina Martinez: 

Good morning. My name is Carolina Martinez, with the Environmental Health Coalition. 
Thank you for the report and all the flexibility. We're here to request trainings for concepts 
like the road user charge for our community members in Barrio Logan, National City, and 
City Heights. To be able to understand these concepts, they're very complicated and we want 
to ensure misinformation is not used against them when making decisions. 

I support residents in Barrio Logan, National City, and City Heights in understanding policies 
that are impacting their transportation. And I've conducted at least five different workshops 
on the road user charge. I explained to them that folks with less fuel-efficient vehicles are the 
ones that are paying the most when it comes to the gas tax. So we request that both 
SANDAG and the state dedicate capacity to support our community members in 
understanding this concept so that information is not used against them. Thank you. 

Francesca Webb, Clerk to the Board: 

Your time has expired. Our next speaker will be Mike Bullock, who will be followed by Blair 
Beekman. 

Mike Bullock: 

Yeah, thank you very much, Board, and thank you, Board, for all the work that you do. It is 
very unfortunate that we went down this path, because this road use charge was not going 
to take place until 2030. And of course, there's the 2025 Regional Transportation Plan, which 
you're working on right now. And the Regional Transportation Plan could get this right. And 
admittedly, it was not done right in the 2021 Regional Transportation Plan. 

It should be obvious to all of us now that the state gasoline tax should be replaced by a 
means-based road use charge that does protect our privacy. And that can happen. That's one 
thing Democrats, Republicans agree on that we don't want to live in a police state. We 
respect our privacy and that can be done. I say that as a retired satellite systems engineer, 
Lockheed and- 

Francesca Webb, Clerk to the Board: 

Your time has expired. Our final speaker on this item will be Blair Beekman. You can go 
ahead. 

Blair Beekman: 

Hi, Blair Beekman here. To note that we, public comment, we are headed towards a future 
where there's going to be a lot of biometric technology used on our buses and I think we 
have to be ready for that with really open, accountable, clear policies and not be afraid to 
have those conversations openly. I mean, obviously, they're creating a lot of fear and angst 
and worry, and we need to learn how to be open in those conversations and it's open public 
policies that can allow that good conversation to take place and decisions to be made. 

I also, with the ideas around many more buses, it's just an idea to increase ridership. Good 
luck how to do that. And I wanted to offer that the electric bus issue really looked to the VTA 
for ideas on the future of electric buses. And good luck on housing to really consider low-
income housing development as a very viable option. Don't be afraid to talk about that either. 
Thank you. 
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Francesca Webb, Clerk to the Board: 

Chair, that concludes the public comments on this item. 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Hey, thank you. We have a couple of members who have comments. I'm going to turn it over 
to Councilmember Shu. 

Councilmember Jack Shu: 

Thank you. Keith, I'd like to ask you a few questions first before I make my comments. Keith, 
you mentioned that this amendment will reduce our ability to reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions, from 20 to 18 point something, about almost 2%. What's the current CARB scoping 
plans targets with regards to reducing greenhouse gas emissions? 

Keith Greer: 

CARB hasn't set targets for MPOs yet, so the current target for SANDAG is 19%. 

Councilmember Jack Shu: 

You didn't answer my question. What is the current CARB scoping plan, just passed in 
November or December of last year, with regards to greenhouse gas reductions? 

Keith Greer: 

So there's two things happening here. The CARB scoping plan, which is a guidelines for how 
much overall state needs to reduce greenhouse gas, overall state, 25%. The current SANDAG 
target established by CARB is 19%. 

Councilmember Jack Shu: 

Isn't that 25% by 2030? Five years early? 

Keith Greer: 

25% by 2030. That's correct. 

Councilmember Jack Shu: 

Correct. Do you think the CARB will set a target for MPOs that is going to be higher or less 
than 19% in the future? 

Keith Greer: 

I do not have a crystal ball. The trend is going up. It's going to be harder to get our 
greenhouse gas targets at 19%. More likely it's going to go up from that. 

Councilmember Jack Shu: 

Can you say that again? Do you think it's going to go higher than 19% in the future? 

Keith Greer: 

All signs are it's going to go higher. It's going to be harder to reach your target. 
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Councilmember Jack Shu: 

So, just to be clear, by passing this amendment, we're going in the opposite direction than 
what we might have in the future. 

Keith Greer: 

So, I think there's two ways to look at this. Right now, your target is 19%. Pursuant to the 
CARB's guidelines, you're meeting that target. You will have a choice as a board in the future, 
as part of the '25 plan and future Regional Plans, for how you choose to meet future targets. 
But for right now, you are meeting CARB's targets pursuant to their guidelines. 

Councilmember Jack Shu: 

Thank you. So, as most of you know on board, I've been against making this amendment to 
the '21 Regional Plan for a variety of reasons. There are many states, many regions of this 
country, and others, that have looked into road use charge. In fact, the state of California did 
with a pilot program which showed that people who use the road use charge found it much 
better than the current road use charge, which is a gas tax. 75% favored it. 

We know the gas tax is regressive, that poor people pay more than rich people. So again, by 
putting this amendment forward, we're going against this body's own equity policies. 
SANDAG said we were going to try to deal with equity issues, because we know the poor 
suffered more, not only in terms of pollution, but also in terms of not having adequate 
transportation options. So, to me, it was just a complete quandary for me why we would want 
to do something to punish the poor because of misinformation that this body was working 
with. 

And I get information from other sources. A conservative body that deals with tax issues, the 
American Tax Foundation, have looked into road use charge. They favor it. They think we 
should move towards it sooner rather than later. And lastly, another piece of misinformation 
that the public has been working with is that this body has the ability to impose a tax. We 
don't. We can't do that. Even if all of us unanimously voted to impose a tax, we don't. We put 
it before the people. 

By placing this item on the plan, it gives the people of this region the option to impose, it 
means to raise funding for transportation with a road use tax, with a road use charge. So, to 
me, by taking this out of the plan, we're taking the ability of our constituents to decide for 
themselves whether or not they want a road use charge to fund adequate transportation. 

Keith Greer: 

Thank you. 

Councilmember Jack Shu: 

So again, it's very undemocratic and we're being dictatorial by taking that option away from 
the people to make that choice. And lastly, by amending this plan to go backwards with 
regards to reducing greenhouse gas emissions, we're giving this burden to the next board, 
the next generation to have to come up with a plan to reduce greenhouse gas emissions 
even more. 25% reduction per capita by 2030 is the new goal. Not 19%, not 20% with our last 
plan. That's the science, and that many of you have told me that you believe in climate 
change. Well, if you believe in climate change, you have to believe in climate science and 
climate math. 
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So, to me, voting for this amendment going forward is just contradictory to what we need to 
be doing here at SANDAG. These are hard numbers. I don't like them. I don't like the idea that 
our transportation system is inadequate. There are means to deal with privacy issues, there 
are means to make sure that a road use charge is means-based, and that people who rely on 
transportation are able to continue to use it and to provide other subsidies or means to help 
those who need help financially. 

We do that with other utility bills, we do that with a number of means and it's able to do that. 
Privacy issues can also be dealt with. And I get this from other studies that I've read with 
regards to how this can work well. Hawaii, Oregon, Washington, Pennsylvania, other states 
throughout the country are looking into it. California certainly looking into it. We should have 
the ability to go forward and think forward. So I hope all of you take that into consideration as 
we go forward on this issue. Thank you. 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Thank you. Councilmember Burkholder. 

Councilmember Melanie Burkholder: 

Thank you, Chair. In light of my colleague's comments, Mr. Greer, on the slide, I think it's 
number seven, where it talks about the result in disparate impact, can you please explain to 
the board how you came to that conclusion that removing the charge would not result in 
that? 

Keith Greer: 

So as part of our- 

Councilmember Melanie Burkholder: 

And I'm sorry, and then I have one comment and I'm done. 

Keith Greer: 

Sorry about that. And as part of our Regional Plan, we have to do a social equity analysis. So 
when the amendment comes along, we do look at the amendment and we have that same 
social equity analysis updated. So that's part of your attachments to Errata. It's attachment 
one. It's posted online. And what they look at in social equity analysis is disadvantaged 
populations and the difference between disadvantaged populations for both benefits and 
things that are not benefits against the non-discriminatory population. So it's comparison 
analysis. 

Zero would mean there's no difference. For the majority of the items under the amendment, 
there is no difference. It affects both the disadvantaged populations and the non-
disadvantaged populations the same. Some are actually a benefit to them. So, for example, a 
road use charge is a cost. So for disadvantaged population, that cost is a greater burden than 
for non-disadvantaged populations. So in that case, it's a more of a benefit for them not to 
have that. So it's a social equity analysis, it's attachment to the Errata and it's publicly online. 
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Councilmember Melanie Burkholder: 

Thank you for that. And completely off of that topic, Carlsbad is very interested in partnering 
with SANDAG in the flexible fleet program, and I'm just asking staff to accelerate that 
program. Thank you. 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Thank you. Councilmember Gaasterland. 

Councilmember Terry Gaasterland: 

Great, thank you very much. Keith, thank you for the presentation. Could you bring up slide 
four, please? 

Keith Greer: 

[inaudible]. 

Councilmember Terry Gaasterland: 

Okay, I'm going to assume that it's up there, because I can't see it from here. Oh, there we 
are. Okay, so I always check the math and when... This corresponds to table, ugh, I'm sorry, 
table 4.2, I think, in our report. On table 4.2, we are given the numbers 22.1 and 22.5 as the 
VMT projected, in the old versus the new. What we're not given is, at least I couldn't find it, 
maybe it's there, is the VMT in 2005 that we are comparing to. 

So I do the math, and I take these percents, 20.4, and that means that the 22.1 is 79.67% of X. 
Calculate X, take it to three decimals and do the same with the 22.5, which is really 22.489 
and the 22.1 is really 22.143. So you get a different X. And if I use the old X, so 22.1, and that 
number, and then ask what's the difference with the new projection? The number I get is 
18.9598. So it's actually really, really close to that 19%. 

So I bring this up, because we really are talking about two tenths of a percentage point 
difference here and there. Your numbers that are in the table come to a different X. My point 
being, we're really concerned about this VMT reduction and yet the math doesn't add up. 

Keith Greer: 

So, first of all, let me thank you for going through that math. I couldn't follow all of it, but we 
do have a program here where we do check our math and have a QA/QC process. It's part of 
our peer review process that Dr. Burke's in charge of. I can say that both the numbers shown 
up here are consistent with the report and there's also shown in the Errata. And Dr. Burke, 
would you like to add, adjust anything else? 

Dr. Burke: 

We do have Wu San online. He was unable to be here today. Wu, he was promoted panelist, if 
you want to explain anything quickly? 

Dr. Wu Sun: 

Sure. Can you hear me and see me okay? 
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Dr. Burke: 

Yes we can. Thank you. 

Dr. Wu Sun: 

So I have to say there are a lot of numbers there. I don't follow hundred percent, but in terms 
of the to each difference, with and without RUC, is roughly 1.8. It's combination of the mode 
share change, which represented drive behavior change. So for example, driving alone for 
work trip increased by 0.3%, and also because driving is cheaper, the average trip events 
increase by 1% overall. So that's the combination of these two factors. 

Councilmember Terry Gaasterland: 

Okay. So I would urge all of us to really ask for accurate numbers. Precision to three decimal 
points isn't necessarily necessary, but I get 19% if I ignore the decimal points, and I'm going to 
tell you how I get it. 22.1 is the VMT number in the old. 22.5 is the VMT number in the 
amendment. If we take 22.1 and divide by 79.6%, we get the 2005 number, presumably. If we 
take 22.5 and divide by 81.46%, 0.4%, we get a different number. So that means that we're off 
a little bit. And my calculation of the off a little bit is 2/10 thousandths of a percentage point 
away from 19%. So I think by rounding, you're doing the calculation a slight disservice, that 
this is actually very, very, very close, a whisper close to 19%. 

Dr. Burke: 

If it would be acceptable, we'd be happy to follow up with you after this meeting to explain. 
We've done this consistently throughout, and we definitely want to do this to be compliant 
with CARB. So we'll definitely make sure that we can work through the numbers with you to 
explain how we've gotten there and we can return back to the board to let them know how 
that's worked out. 

Councilmember Terry Gaasterland: 

Yeah, that's good. That's fine. 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Thank you. The next person is Councilmember Duncan? 

Councilmember John Duncan: 

Thank you. I think my questions were answered by the other director's questions. The part of 
the point, though, is this, it's modeling, right? And all models are somewhat imperfect. We try 
to make them as perfect as possible, but I just wanted clarification. It seems to me that the 
two main factors that are going into the models that would lead to the conclusion of the 
greenhouse gas increase or not as much reduction are one, that the road user charge would 
have a suppressive effect on driving due to its cost, due to the increased cost. 

And the other aspect appears to be that it may slow down some other mass transit or other 
projects that might lessen the desire to drive. I am interested in how heavily each of those 
factors weighed in the calculation. I know this may be too simplistic, but if you have any 
comments on that that may help me more, that would be great, but I appreciate the 
comments you've already made as well. 
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Keith Greer: 

Just really quickly, I think Dr. Sun online explained it. So when you take out the road usage 
charge, it makes it cheaper to drive so people drive more and then drive further. And so, 
that's simplistically how it works. 

Councilmember John Duncan: 

Right. And that's what I just said. My question, I guess would be a little bit more specific, and 
if we don't have it right now, that's fine, would be the percentage impacts of those. I mean, if 
based on what you just said, if the change in the calculation for greenhouse gas reduction 
target would be based, based on what you just said, I believe 100% on the fact that there 
would be more driving, because it's not going to be increased the cost of it. But I think it was 
more complex also. It actually also included the other factor that I mentioned. I can look into 
it deeply separately. Thank you. 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Thank you, Mayor Jones? 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

Thank you, Chair. Okay, so I had a couple of comments and then a couple of questions. So, I 
have a little bit of heartburn about the $1.5 million that we are spending on this, only because 
eight of the original cities that voted on this were my city, Carlsbad, Coronado, El Cajon, 
Oceanside, Poway, Santee, and Vista. We originally voted no, because we did know about the, 
how close the reduction was, enough to almost meet the goal and round up. 

Many of the board members that were on at the time have actually said, "Oh, the RUC is 
already out of the plan." It's not, and we have found today that it's moving forward. October, 
we should have board approval and then moving forward to submit to CARB. That would 
happen in November. So again, still not taken out, not out of it. But I do have some questions. 
And oh, one other thing, the road user charge does not pay or is not in lieu of the actual gas 
tax, it's on top of the gas tax. It does not replace it. 

So the metrics, I did ask a question on Wednesday. I did get a response last night. The ABM 
travel demand, I'm not going to go through all of that right now today, but can I have that 
sent to me where that's located, because I haven't been able to locate that. You don't have to 
do that right now, but I would like to talk about... Oh- 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

We'll send it to everybody so everybody has a copy of it. 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

Perfect. On page 188, we're talking about the revenue assumptions and we still talk about 
them in 2020 dollars. Which again, I have a little bit of an issue with that, because we do have 
the year of expenditure numbers. The item number one, which is the removal of the road 
user charge is 14.2 billion over the life of the '21 plan. However, the year of expenditure is 24.47 
billion, which is quite a bit of a difference. It's 10 billion more. I would like for us to start talking 
in the dollars and year of expenditure, because that's actually more of what we actually will 
be paying. 
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And then also, I do have this question on number three of that same revenue assumptions. 
The update in the TransNet, we're figuring that'll be about two billion more, and I don't think 
that we actually voted on reallocating the TransNet dollars from what our residents have 
actually agreed to pay for. So if I missed that and somehow we voted on that and I didn't 
realize that, I would like to know. And if not, when are we planning on actually moving 
forward with the reallocation of TransNet dollars to the new Regional Plan? 

CEO Hasan Ihkrata: 

Let me, if I may answer the question of the mayor. The TransNet allocation is totally different 
from this amendment. This amendment is based on a request by this board to remove the 
RUC from the plan and we're doing that. I said many times before, and I'm going to say it 
again to you, that the TransNet money right now in the account is enough to pay the debt. 
There is no additional TransNet money to reallocate. We could BS you until, "Yeah, we'll do 
that, we'll bring..." But between now and 2030, more than 85% of the TransNet money is 
going in paying the debt we borrowed to build the project. 

So Mayor, with all due respect, when you say reallocate, you have to have money to 
reallocate. There is no money in the TransNet, at least between now and 2030, and that's a 
different process than the amendment. This board requested to remove the road user 
charge from the plan. We did it. We're going to release it for public review as the modeler 
said, it's 18.6 rounded to 19%, and we'll let the state decide how to do about that, to go about 
approving it or not approving it. But I just want to make sure we're clear. There is nothing to 
reallocate and the fact that somebody at one point told you we have all this money, it's 
double what's actually is, I'm sorry. I apologize that you are under the impression that 
TransNet has more money than it actually does. 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

I'm sorry Mr. Ihkrata, so you're saying between now and 2030, but this is a... this would 
happen in 2030 anyway. 

CEO Hasan Ihkrata: 

Correct. 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

So you said 85% of TransNet would go toward debt service, so there was- 

CEO Hasan Ihkrata: 

Yes. 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

.... there's still 15%- 

CEO Hasan Ihkrata: 

Correct. 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

... at some point. Yeah. 
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CEO Hasan Ihkrata: 

Yeah. 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

So the 15% we have not voted on reallocating that, correct? 

CEO Hasan Ihkrata: 

You did not prepare- 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

And the reason... Sorry, the reason I bring this up is because it's right here in the revenue 
assumptions on page 188 that we are counting TransNet dollars. 

CEO Hasan Ihkrata: 

Sure. 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

That's why I bring it up. 

CEO Hasan Ihkrata: 

Yeah. And the 15% has been allocated many times over to match the grant we're getting. So 
the bottom line is there is no money to reallocate. That's the honest answer. Now, if you want 
to go about debating why and how, that's fine. 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

No. No, I'm sorry. Maybe I'm not understanding, because we are counting income from 
TransNet to actually pay for this plan, which also bases on- 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

[inaudible] 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

Okay. 

Keith Greer: 

We also have a chief financial officer here, but there's two things going on here. This is not 
about reallocation. The number in here is about an estimate in the future of what TransNet 
would bring in and it's updating that estimate based upon the board's own adopted 2022 
estimate. 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

But if it's a revenue assumption to pay for the '21 plan, then it is being used for the '21 plan. 



   

 

Attachment C: Public Participation 29 

Keith Greer: 

That same revenue assumption was built in the '21 plan, nothing's changed. All that's 
changed is the amount of the estimate in the future, based upon higher than anticipated 
sales tax. 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

Okay, but the TransNet was actually, sorry... Maybe I'm splitting hairs, but I want to 
understand this. I'm trying to get at it. I'm sure I'm probably not the only one. So when we're 
looking at TransNet, it was to pay for certain improvements, and what I'm trying to figure out 
is if it's paying for the new plan, where are those dollars actually going that are specific to the 
actual original plan? I'm sorry, the '21 plan? 

Keith Greer: 

Maybe Andre would be more helpful in this. 

Coleen Clementson: 

I can add something here, if I may. 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

Yeah. 

Coleen Clementson: 

So, remember that having a revenue scenario is a federal requirement to get this plan 
approved. And so, what we have to do is show the federal government that this is a possible 
way to pay for this plan. The only thing that's been done here is we've looked at the revenues 
and that was based on the board input. How much more do we think we're going to get 
from state and federal grants because there's a tremendous amount of money out there that 
we didn't anticipate? So we upped that piece. 

Then we also looked at our latest revenue assumptions for TransNet and we built that up as 
well. That's what made up for the $14 billion shortfall once you take the road usage charge 
out. The critical thing here is that that additional revenue is not attributed to any particular 
project. It's really just getting that math problem right so we can take this amended plan and 
give it to the federal government and ask them to approve it so that we can continue to get 
federal funding. So that's how it's done. 

It's not that this 1.2 billion is going to this project or that project. It's overall to meet that hole 
in the plan that comes as a result of pulling out the road usage charge, and- 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

Thank you, Coleen. 

Coleen Clementson: 

... that's all there is to it. 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

Yeah, I think you're understanding what I'm asking. 
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Coleen Clementson: 

Yes. 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

So we haven't actually allocated it, but we're using it as an assumption that we will reallocate 
it at some point in time and it will be used for the new plan. Great, thank you for that 
clarification. I'm sorry to be splitting hairs. I'm really not trying to waste our time. I just want to 
understand it completely. Thank you. 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

All right, Mayor? Deputy Mayor Goble? 

Deputy Mayor Steve Goble: 

Thank you, Chair. I think the public might be a little confused why we're making revisions to a 
historical document rather than modifying a future document. Can you help me understand 
that? 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Go ahead. 

Coleen Clementson: 

Certainly. So these plans are required to be updated every four years. That's a federal law and 
a state law. So the most recent plan that the board of directors approved was in December of 
2021. Your next plan, the 2025 plan is due in the fall of 2025 to the state and federal agencies. 
What the board had asked staff to do as, a result of a lot of public input, take that road usage 
charge out of the 2021 plan. That's what's before you today is a proposed amendment to the 
plan that the board adopted in December of 2021. We recognize that some of your discussion 
here is important for the 2025 plan and we've got a full workshop planned for you all on 
funding for the 2025 plan coming up. 

Deputy Mayor Steve Goble: 

Great. Thank you. 

Coleen Clementson: 

Thank you for the question, because I know that can be really confusing for the public, too. 

Deputy Mayor Steve Goble: 

Thank you. My next question has to do with the 19% reduction by 2035. Does that include the 
benefit of conversion from gas to electric cars? CARB says that we will have 2.9 million less 
gas engines sold by 2030 and 9.5 million less gas engines sold by 2035, implying they'll be 
electric by then. Does the 19% reduction include the benefit of that conversion from gas to 
electric? 
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Keith Greer: 

So the number that CARB gives us, it's against the 2005 baseline and it's very specific what 
we can count and not count, and it's already built into the model, including things like fleet 
turnover, which is what you're getting at. So the number we've given you, that 18.6, has all the 
built-in assumptions as we know right now already built into it. 

Deputy Mayor Steve Goble: 

So it's, answer sounds like yes- 

Keith Greer: 

Does include. 

Deputy Mayor Steve Goble: 

... it does include the conversion, gas to electric, is what you're saying. 

Keith Greer: 

Correct. 

Deputy Mayor Steve Goble: 

I understand. Okay, thank you. My point- 

Coleen Clementson: 

I think one clarifying point there. So the laws that we have to comply with and the math 
problem that we have to use to get to that 19%, the law doesn't allow us to count electric 
vehicles, unless it goes above and beyond what the state is already expecting this region to 
accomplish. So the measurement that we have to use looks at vehicle miles traveled per 
person, how long the trips are, how many trips I take on an annual basis. That's what we have 
to use and that's the proxy to get to this greenhouse gas reduction. I know it's super 
complicated and in the weeds, but that's the law that the state has for us and for everybody 
in the state of California to have to meet. So even if every vehicle today was electric, we 
wouldn't see a big increase there. So that, I just wanted to clarify that point in the law that 
makes this really complicated. 

Deputy Mayor Steve Goble: 

If you said every car today was electric, we wouldn't beat the 19%? 

Coleen Clementson: 

We still would have to meet our vehicle miles traveled. So it doesn't... the vehicle miles 
traveled, you may still drive even if your car is electric. So we're all accumulating miles, you 
may actually drive more. 

Deputy Mayor Steve Goble: 

So, it's really more about miles driven than- 
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Coleen Clementson: 

That's the math problem that we have- 

Deputy Mayor Steve Goble: 

... GHG reduction is what I'm hearing you say. 

Coleen Clementson: 

That's true. 

Deputy Mayor Steve Goble: 

So really- 

Coleen Clementson: 

That's the math problem. 

Deputy Mayor Steve Goble: 

Really, this is about getting- 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Excuse me, hold on one second. 

Deputy Mayor Steve Goble: 

... out of CARB rather than what kind of car we're driving? 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Can you hold on one second? Give me a second. The members of the audience, can you 
please refrain from making any comments or clapping or anything? That we need to have 
this discussion as a board, so we ask that you are respectful of our time. Go ahead, sir. 

Deputy Mayor Steve Goble: 

So am I right in hearing you saying it's less about the kind of car we're driving gas for electric 
and more about the number of miles that we're driving? 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

I think the important thing to mention here is that there's rules and formulas and regulations 
that the state has directed us. And so it's not necessarily what she's saying or what we're 
saying, it is the regulations that we have to follow. And so that's where the math is where it's 
at, but happy to have a conversation in terms of some of the laws. 

If you remember when we did the Regional Plan for 2025, we had a whole briefing about 
what were the factors that we had to take in place so that we as we're trying to reach our 
goals, that we really understood what those were. I think we can go back and check so that 
everybody understands for the 2021 plan what those were in case you have any specific 
questions on that. 
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Deputy Mayor Steve Goble: 

Yeah, I think the public would say what's really driving the 19%, the conversion to electric or 
fewer miles traveled? 

CEO Hasan Ihkrata: 

Vehicles miles traveled. 

Deputy Mayor Steve Goble: 

That's what the public would ask. Yeah, yeah. 

CEO Hasan Ihkrata: 

Vehicles miles traveled. 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Mm-hmm. 

Deputy Mayor Steve Goble: 

My final question, we took out the 3.30 cent road user charge from the regional charge. Page 
three of the staff report says separate from the regional RUC, the 2021 Regional Plan also 
assumes revenues resulting from the state administered RUC. What's the amount per mile of 
that and how much is in the plan, in terms of billions of dollars? 

Keith Greer: 

Let's get back to you on that. We might have an answer online in one second. The actual 
state charge. I do not know it right now. 

Deputy Mayor Steve Goble: 

It would have been 3.30 cents, plus the state charge, is what the staff report is implying. And 
I'm trying to find out 3.30 cents plus 4 cents? And since we took out 14 billion, it assumes 
there are several billion still in there from state RUC. I'm trying to figure that out, too. 

Keith Greer: 

You're precise that this removes the regional road usage charge. It doesn't affect anything 
the state's doing. We're trying to get that number for you, but this does not affect the state's 
regional road usage charge. 

Deputy Mayor Steve Goble: 

I understand. I think a public would say, "What's the total nut we're trying to crack?" 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

We can get that number for you. We can get that number for you. And I think it's important 
and the good news is that that's why we're here today to have a discussion and to be able to 
address any questions that you have. And you have to remember there are things that we 
can do based on our jurisdiction and then there are other things that we must comply with 
because of the state. And if there's anything that we need to change with the state, I think is 
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working directly with our state legislators to be able to modify some of that. Any other 
questions, sir? All right, Mayor Minto. 

Mayor John Minto: 

All right, this is kind of interesting. I'm hearing about all these numbers and everything, and 
you mentioned the, complying with the state of California. And bottom line is, we're also 
trying and comply with the federal law, and so it's all getting passed down to all the 
jurisdictions to make us the bad guy. I guess what we're really talking about is this concept of 
climate change and the reduction of our greenhouse emissions by 19%, and that's an 
attempt to help reduce the rise in temperature, not just in San Diego County but the state 
and maybe across the world. 

So, if we were actually to implement this road user tax, I see what the number is for money, 
but how many cars would it actually take off the streets? I don't know if you have this 
information today, but you can get it to us. I think that's important, because it goes to what 
Deputy Mayor Goble was saying, is it's really not about just about getting cars off the street, 
doesn't matter what they are. So then, to one end, do we know what the temperature 
change would be in milestone years? 

For instance in 2030, '35, '40, maybe even 2050, are we talking about reducing the rise in 
temperature? Are we talking about there would be a lowering of a temperature worldwide, 
or would there be no change, which means we just stay where we're at today? And even if it 
went up 1% in temperature change, what's the real effect of that worldwide and how is it that 
we are, by what we're doing here in San Diego County changing the world? Because I can 
tell you right now, in my opinion, we're not changing the world with what we're doing here. 

Some will say, "But it's a start." Yeah, well, you know what? I can't afford to pay more for 
driving, like a lot of people. I'm retired. I'm on a fixed income now. Always wanted to say that. 
So I don't know if you have any of those answers. I doubt it, because we're too busy. 
Everybody's too busy talking about reducing the greenhouse gas effects and preventing the 
worldwide temperature rise, but nobody seems to know what that worldwide temperature 
rise will be in 40 years even, or 20 years even. And so, I don't know, I guess the question is 
how can you justify, how can we justify it? How can the state justify it or the federal 
government justify it if they don't know the answer? So I just thought I'd throw that out for 
fun, if nothing else. 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

All right, thank you. Councilmember Shu. 

Councilmember Jack Shu: 

Sure I have a... Well, let me address what Council... I mean, Mayor Minto's thing real quick, and 
have a question for Mayor Jones. We're going to have breakfast about this Minto and I, but 
that's similar to someone that would say, "I shouldn't pay any-" 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Give me one second. It's not a Q&A. This is a board discussion. And in board discussion 
members are able to have conversations with each other. That's what this process is all 
about. So no, it's not a Q&A, it's, a comment was made by one of my colleagues. My other 
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colleague was already in the queue and so I gave him the power to be able to ask anything 
he can. He can ask anybody in this room any questions that he has. So just for clarification. 

Councilmember Jack Shu: 

So Mayor Minto, when that issue was brought up to me by another elected person, I say, 
"Well, that's like the federal government's already what, three, $4 trillion in debt, how much is 
my little income tax to the federal government's going to make?" Wouldn't make any 
difference at all. Maybe I don't have to pay any taxes at all. Anyway, we'll leave that for our 
breakfast discussion. But Mayor Jones, you had mentioned that the road use charge would 
be in addition to the gas tax, not a replacement of the gas tax. I'm just wondering where did 
you get that from? 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

Councilmember Shu, right in the document, the funding document, it has the gas tax still in 
there, and then it also has the road user charge as not being able to be used for any road 
fixing or anything like that. It's on page V4 of the appendix, if you'd like to read that. Thank 
you. 

Councilmember Jack Shu: 

Sure. 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

And if you'd like to meet for coffee, I'd be happy to do that- 

Councilmember Jack Shu: 

I'd love it. I'll love it. 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

... anytime so we don't waste our board's time. Thank you. 

Councilmember Jack Shu: 

Thank you. That's really news to me, because all the documents I've read and information 
from the state and the other states, the road use charge is to replace the gas tax, which they 
believe is getting obsolete. We've had it for a hundred years and it's obsolete in the sense 
that I know you drive electric vehicle so you know your $200 per registration fee, per year is a 
fraction of what others are paying with the gas tax. So- 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

Page V4 Councilmember. 

Councilmember Jack Shu: 

Coffee's on me. I'll look forward to that. Thank you. 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Thank you. Councilmember Melendez. 
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Councilmember Katie Melendez: 

Thank you. Great discussion, everyone. And I'm glad that we're at this point where we're 
looking at alternatives to our previous plan, but regardless of a discussion around a regional 
road usage charge, the state RUC is coming, and from my understanding, we have yet to be 
given a confident timeline of when the gas tax will be abolished. It has become less profitable 
of a revenue stream over the past several decades as cars have become more fuel efficient. 

And now with the change to laws with the sale of internal combustion vehicles, we know that 
it will be essentially obsolete, but we haven't been given a confident timeline from the state. 
And I really believe that we need to, in addition to our planning regionally, we need to put 
ourselves in a position of education and advocacy, and has this body taken a position of 
legislative advocacy to abolish the gas tax? 

In the City of Vista, I brought forward a resolution to insist on just that and I really believe that 
for the benefit of the public and for the working people that are going to continue to use 
gas-powered vehicles, because that is all that they can afford, I want to have full confidence 
for them that at no point will members of the public be suffering from a doubles taxation. 
And I really believe we need to put ourselves in a position of legislative advocacy, regardless 
of a state or regional road usage charge. We have to have a clear definition of when the gas 
tax is going to be abolished. 

Keith Greer: 

Thank you. Deputy Mayor Molina? 

Deputy Mayor Luz Molina: 

Yes, thank you, Chair Vargas. I would like to expand on Councilmember Melendez's 
comments. And absolutely, I completely understand the confusion that is out there, the facts 
and the other facts that the public seems to be catching. Of course, these are extremely 
complicated figures and methods and mechanisms by how we arrived at these figures. I 
would like to call for SANDAG to provide us board members, so that we can then disseminate 
the information to our, the people that we represent, in a way that is understandable. 

Regarding the road usage charge that is coming from the state, this would not be the one 
that SANDAG or whoever's going to go and put on a voter ballot, right? That's completely 
different. There's one from the state that's coming. The one here from SANDAG or for the 
regional transportation plan is getting taken off 2021. What does that mean? People are still 
going to see a road usage charge from the state of California? I mean, there's a lot that needs 
to be explained clearly. 

And I would like to request a way for me to explain that information to the people that come 
and ask me, "Is the road usage charge going to be on top of the gas tax?" Here, we're 
hearing... At this table, we're hearing two different things. So what is it? I need to know that 
information so that I can explain it to the people that I'm speaking with. Thank you. 

CEO Hasan Ihkrata: 

Hi, Mayor, Chairwoman. I think the councilwoman from National City is asking a great 
question and we are now getting into this philosophical discussion of it's a VMT or it's a 
greenhouse gas emission. Is it the temperature rising or falling? That's beside the point. 
We're a transportation agency. We have a state law and a federal law. The state law said that 
you have to meet certain targets. Don't ask us why this target, whether it's logical. We didn't 
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set those targets. If you want to change those target, like the chairwoman alluded to, talk to 
the legislators and change the law. 

I think Councilmember Fisher was saying last time in the workshop, "Let's change the law." 
Change the law. But the law is this, in the regional transportation plan, and by the way, in 
every regional transportation plan in the state, there is the statewide assumption and that is 
either a gas tax or a replacement of the gas tax. We have nothing to do with that. That's a 
statewide assumption. On top of that, we assumed a road user charge. I think it's about two 
cents per mile and the board ask us to remove it and that's what we're doing. So let's not 
complicate these issues and make it philosophical discussion. 

It's very simple, this board directed staff to take the road user charge on top of the statewide, 
which we have nothing to do with, out. We're taking it out. We're resubmitting the plan to 
the state. It's up to the state whether they're going to approve it or not, but we're following 
your direction. And look, you all smart people, but this is definitely beyond my pay scale to 
start solving the modeling problem here that require few PhDs that doing it right now, like 
Dr. Wu, to solve. 

But this discussion is really about following your direction and taking the road user charge 
out and putting this for public review. There is no other discussion that been taken. There is 
no changes to the plan. We are following your direction and removing the road user charge. 
The statewide charge, we have nothing to do with it. And every plan in the state, San 
Francisco, Los Angeles, Sacramento, all the 18 MPOs have that statewide assumption. Now, 
the state now is doing a pilot to replace the gas tax with a different user charge. We don't 
know the result of that and we don't control it either, and I hope that answered your 
question. 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Yeah. But I do believe, Vice Mayor, that your request is not one that I don't know that 
necessarily is where you stand on the issue. What's you're asking is for a document with the 
facts. And I know that that's handy, because we have used the facts to have these 
conversations over and over again. I think there's absolutely an opportunity and that's why 
this discussion is so important. There are people who have very different perspectives and 
that's why we all run for office with our different perspectives, and our constituents elected 
into office and we all are sitting here having the discussion. 

And there are going to be clear philosophical reasons of how we get to one place or another. 
Some of us may be leaning one way or another and that's okay. That's what this body is 
supposed to be doing. And in the retreat, all of you asked for opportunities to have further 
deep dives on some of these issues and that's what we're doing here today. It's taking this 
long because it's a process we have to follow. Because part of our responsibility and our job is 
to ensure that there is opportunities for public comment, et cetera, et cetera. 

I know that it's been said, it has been since last December where the recommendation was 
done to take the road user charge out of this plan. I was on TV announcing that we were 
going to take it out. And then there was assumptions made that I said, "Oh, I'm taking it out." 
No, this is not the nor show. I never said that I was going to take it out. What I said is that 
that's the direction that the board gave us and that's the direction that we're going to be 
going under my leadership as chair, and that's what we're doing right now. 

Could it happen faster? I wish government worked faster, I really do, every day of my life. And 
I've been a public servant for a couple of years now. It doesn't work that fast. But I think to 
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your point, it is extremely important that if it takes us longer to have these conversations, 
because if you have questions and you have access to all this data every day, imagine what 
the public is asking for. So, to respond to you, we will make sure that we have some sort of, I 
know that we have it already, because I've seen them, and we'll get that to you so that you 
can share with your colleagues and we'll get it to everyone else. All right, Councilmember? 

Councilmember Andrea Cardenas: 

Yeah. So first of all, I think the discussion is really great. I think part of what we're seeing right 
now, though, is there's two separate things that we're trying to get at. One of them being the 
item at hand, which is looking at the amendment that was requested from this board for 
something a previous board did. There are things that are just what we need to do to be in 
compliance, and please correct me at any point if I'm wrong, with both state and federal law, 
and that's the way that we must govern. 

There is also a lot of discussion, though, on how we feel about those things and that's 
perfectly okay for us to have a conversation on. However, I genuinely believe that that's a 
conversation we must be having when we're talking about our legislative priorities and the 
things that we would like to change about the way that we must govern or we want to 
operate in here. I'm hearing, of course, it's not ideal that we're not taking into consideration 
several assumptions and whatnot, but we still have a formula that we need to input the data 
in that's going to give us the result, and that's the formula that's been handed to us. 

That's a card that's been handed to us as what we must do until we are able to, either decide 
as a board we want to advocate as an agency to our state, federal legislators, that's perfectly 
fine. I just think that we're getting all of these things convoluted and that's why it gets so 
muddled in this conversation. They're two completely different conversations to have. One is, 
are we doing what we must do, per accordance with what our board is here to do? And the 
other is what do we want to see changed, right? 

And I think we've had those conversations both at the retreat and in some of our workshops 
about, well, we just don't like that we have to do these things or we don't think that it's 
conducive to the work that we do in our region. And that's fair, but we must take that 
conversation on the action of what we can do about that policy rather than the overall of our 
philosophical or our ideas. 

I do think we can be a stronger advocacy agency for the things that we believe don't work for 
our region. Because the reality is, our region is very unique in a lot of ways. We have not only 
the border but just, we are a very specific region that the needs that we have are different 
than other parts of the state or the country. And so, I just would like for us to, although I think 
this conversation is very great and fruitful, we must be able to differentiate that as we're 
moving forward, because if not, we get caught up in the, "Well, who's making us do this and 
why?" 

And we need to be able to separate that in order for us to have some conclusion when we're 
trying to get, not just getting through the meeting, because of course, we want to hear what 
we all are thinking and what the public has to say, but that's when it gets also very confusing 
for the public, in my opinion, because there is that we're not differentiating between the 
legislative and policies that we would like to see changed and what we need to do as a board. 
And so, I just think that there is a lot of great conversation here. We just need to be able to 
direct it in an element where it makes sense. 
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Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Mayor Kranz. 

Mayor Tony Kranz: 

Yes, thank you. I would point out that Mr. Irkhata's comments about this being a 
philosophical discussion. In reality what it is, writ large, is a political conversation and there's 
no question that for the last couple of years, this issue has been used as a tool to bludgeon 
this agency. And so, while the chair talks about government not being very fast, I'm 
reminded of the term government in action and depending on how you say that, I'm inclined 
to use the term inaction, because it has taken entirely too long to get to the point where 
we're able to consider this in a serious way. So I'm thankful that we're at that point. 

I would also like to point out that we have a road usage charge. It is a gas tax that is as 
inequitable as you could possibly get. I office from home, I ride my bike to city hall. 
Unfortunately, I don't have a transportation system that allows me to come to these 
meetings by public transit or I would gladly do that. My son, a tradesman, works throughout 
the state, pays crazy money to drive his truck in order to transport his tools. 

He recently had the opportunity with the company that he works with to get a company 
vehicle, with a company gas credit card, and it was like a huge pay increase for him. So while 
we have these conversations about the best way to pay for improvements to our 
transportation system, whether that's public transit, modes of public transit, modes of people 
getting from where they need to be to back home, et cetera, I think it is important that we 
remember that the impacts that these decisions have on the common man are pretty 
important. So I look forward to putting this to rest in the 2021 plan and actually relish the 
opportunity to have this conversation again with the 2025 plan. 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Thank you. Mayor Vasquez? 

Mayor Racquel Vasquez: 

I will make my comments very short and I hope sweet. I support a fact sheet regarding what 
a road use charge is, but also clarifying the difference between the state road use charge and 
SANDAG. I think that that would help to inform real people about what's going on here, and I 
think that would help to shore up what the future of transportation allocations of funding will 
look like. 

Secondly, I'd like to say, wow, this is 2021. I'm really looking forward to working on the future 
Regional Plan and I am pleased to see that outlined in the key considerations that budgetary 
question, that budgetary shortfall has been met with the adjustments that are currently 
recommended in item number 16. So fact sheet number one regarding, and I'm talking 
about a one-page fact sheet, a nice and simple, provided to us that can be updated. And 
when updated, notifying us to let us know when it is updated, but also a one-page fact sheet 
regarding the upcoming Regional Plan. Thank you. 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Thank you, Mayor Vasquez. Mayor Jones? 
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Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

Thank you so much, Chair. So we do have a fact sheet, though it's 26 pages, which is the 
funding for the Regional Plan. And it actually has out there, and actually, you had brought 
this up, Vice Mayor Molina. On V23, it has two billion dollars that is going to be... It's called 
city/county local gas taxes. So that, through 2050, is going to bring in revenue to pay for the 
Regional Plan. So anyway, I just want to bring that up, because we do actually have it. I read 
all these little details, I'm geeky like that. So anyway, thanks. 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

No. I'm sure people are not saying that they haven't read it. I think what they're saying is how 
do we digest 26 pages into one document, so that the community who is not responsible for 
doing this work every day can actually absorb it. Right? I think that's what I'm hearing from 
my colleagues, but thank you for sharing that. Councilmember Duncan. 

Councilmember John Duncan: 

Thank you. So this matter is on the agenda today as a public hearing, correct? We're not 
taking action today? So- 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Nope. That's exactly what I said. 

Councilmember John Duncan: 

Yes, and that's exactly what I'm repeating rhetorically. The vast majority of the other directors' 
comments and questions, to me today, were totally appropriate with having a public hearing. 
So I felt that Mr. Ihkrata's comments about our conduct is inappropriate and very excessive in 
regard to chastising us for asking questions. 

For me to ask a question about in the calculation of an increase in greenhouse gases based 
off of the amendment to the Regional Plan that we're having a public hearing about, and 
whether that's primarily about an increase in vehicle miles traveled, as whereas they may be 
suppressed if there's a road user charge, is exactly what I think we're here and we're 
supposed to do. 

And I don't think that our CEO should chastise our fellow directors when they ask a question 
and want to try to understand something. I understand maybe he's frustrated with the fact 
that the road user charge is coming out or that it takes a long time or that it's been work to 
be done, and I appreciate that, but I don't appreciate being chastised publicly for doing what 
I think our job is. 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

So Councilmember Duncan, I think we all take information differently, and as somebody who 
deals with microaggressions on a day-to-day basis in every hour, I can understand where 
people may have different interpretations of the information that is provided. I do believe 
that it's appropriate for executive director to try to guide us and to share with us where the 
different laws are in the state and the local level. His directiveness may not be something 
that you appreciate, but I don't think that, in my opinion. there was nothing that was 
chastising. 
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I do take your comment and I appreciate your comment, but I also think it's important that 
our CEO has an opportunity to be able to delineate where the rules are coming from and 
some of the feedback that he's getting. Which is why I also emphasized, with no intention of 
chastising anyone, that it was important to ensure. And I think Councilmember Cardenas, 
also Deputy Mayor Kat McGovern has also mentioned it, and a couple of other folks, that it's 
really about a lot of the discussions that are taking place are philosophical. 

Because if you heard the passion the Councilmember Shu had around some of the goals, 
and Mayor Minto had a very different, separate discussion and I was, "Ah, okay, well climate 
change is real for me, but he's looking at it from a different lens." I think those are 
philosophical questions. And so, I apologize that you may be absorbing this information in a 
different way, but I do think it's important that our CEO has an opportunity to share 
information. We can work together to figure out how that information is shared and move 
forward. But I do think it's appropriate and I'm sorry that you took it a different way. Go 
ahead. 

Councilmember John Duncan: 

May I respond? 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Actually no, we'll keep moving. So go ahead. I mean, did you want to say, because I am happy 
to have a... If this is a personnel issue, we can have it separately, because I think it's important. 
I just wanted to address to you how I didn't see it that way, and I acknowledge that what you 
saw is your perspective and I think that's important. Is there anything else that you want to 
add? 

Councilmember John Duncan: 

Yeah, just very briefly. I think everything you said about what the CEO could do can be done 
by saying those things without the chastisement part, and we have spoken about that 
before. And the other just last comment I'll make is, when people make very lengthy 
comments about that they think that the meeting is taking too long, they don't seem to 
realize that they're very lengthy comments about the meeting taking too long is causing the 
meeting to last a lot longer and have people respond to those comments. Thank you. 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

The meeting is going to take as long as we need it to happen and people can have their 
opinions. Go ahead, sir. 

Caltrans Director Gustavo Dallarda: 

Thank you Chair Vargas. I wanted to comment on two things quickly. One is on the 
importance of VMT reduction. And you may recall a year, but maybe it was two years ago, we 
had CARB here explaining why GHG and VMT reduction is important. And my recollection, 
and maybe if we can pull up that meeting and share the presentation with some of the new 
board members, was that even after the state has a very good program to change the fleet 
from gas or diesel-consuming vehicles to electric, and it's leading the rest of the nation and 
the world in that respect. 
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But even when those mandates come up, that's for new vehicles. And there's going to be 
many years where people don't change the vehicles every year and some people cannot 
afford to do that. Truckers sometimes they can't afford to buy a new truck overnight, so 
there's still going to be millions of gas and diesel-consuming vehicles and that's why it's 
important to continue looking at reducing VMT. So that was one comment. 

The second comment was I want to echo what Mayor Kranz said, I'm not ashamed, but when 
I go to put gas in my car, I am paying a road user charge and we're all paying a different road 
user charge. If you're lucky enough to have an electric vehicle, you're not paying anything 
when you charge. None of the money when you charge is going to maintain and keep our 
transportation system in order. If you happen to have an old car that is not fuel efficient, 
you're paying a lot more than somebody that has a fuel efficient vehicle. That speaks to the 
inequality that Mayor Kranz talked about. 

And with more zero-emission vehicles on the road, that means less revenue to be able to 
keep our transportation system in good order so that you can keep traveling on it. So that's 
why this state and many other states, and eventually the federal government, will have to 
look at a different way of collecting from people so that, because collecting at the pump is 
not going to yield enough money to be able to keep the system going. So I hope that that 
clarifies. Thank you, Mayor Kranz for bringing that up. 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Thank you. And there's a lot of discussions happening in the state about how we meet our 
goals, infrastructure needs funding. And I think the other piece of it is the amount of funding 
that's going to come from the federal government so that we can ensure. This is the first 
time that we're going to get that much funding for some of these initiatives and projects. 
And so, how do we make sure that that is being allocated to address some of these 
challenges that we have? Let me go ahead and Mayor... I mean, Councilmember... Yeah, yeah, 
White. 

Mayor Dane White: 

Thank you very much. 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Mm-hmm. 

Mayor Dane White: 

I just need some clarification on something that Mayor Jones had said, and that is the 
revenue collected from a road user charge cannot be put back into roads. Is that accurate? 
The region? Got it. So with that being said- 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Hold on, let me ask, can somebody respond to that question? 

Keith Greer: 

I'm not sure I can. So the revenue generated from RUC would go into implementing the 
Regional Plan. 
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Mayor Dane White: 

Correct. 

Keith Greer: 

Yes. 

Mayor Dane White: 

Which is mostly public transportation. 

Keith Greer: 

It's all the policy projects and programs in there. It's a slew of things. 

Mayor Dane White: 

Okay. 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Where's our... 

Mayor Dane White: 

With that being said- 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Hold on one second. Hold on, hold on, because I'm hearing no over here. So, Coleen? 

CEO Hasan Ihkrata: 

No, it's not mostly public transportation, it's for the programs, right, Coleen? 

Coleen Clementson: 

Yeah. So  the road usage charge, if there were a regional road usage charge which is being 
pulled out of this, it's pretty flexible and what it could be used for, because actually the 
people and the board would get to decide how to utilize that. So the state would set the rules 
for the state road usage charge. Any regional collection would really be up to the board and 
ultimately the people to decide how that money should be spent. 

Mayor Dane White: 

Understood. Can you clarify- 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

It says right on page V4 that the eligible uses are transit capital and ATP/programs. That's 
where the Xes are on that actual page. It has transit operations blank, highway capital blank, 
highway operations blank, local streets and roads blank, and then also debt service blank. It 
says specifically on that page, those two eligible uses, because that's what is called, eligible 
uses. [inaudible] source- 
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Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Mayor Jones, I'm just going to ask you to use your clicker. I just want to be fair- 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

Sorry. 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

... because there's other people- 

Mayor Rebecca Jones: 

Certainly he's fine. [inaudible]- 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

... waiting in line. 

Mayor Dane White: 

It's okay. I asked her- 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

I know. So if I can just ask, hold on one second. We need to have a process so that we are able 
to make sure that everybody who is asking to... When you get elected, you are happy to run 
this meeting. Okay. We're going to have a process and I want everybody to have discussion, 
but I have people waiting on the queue. If you have specific questions for anybody, we're 
going to have staff respond. If you have specific questions to a colleague, I'm going to ask the 
colleague to put yourself on the queue so we can follow a process. Is that cool with 
everybody? 

Mayor Dane White: 

That's fine. And moving forward- 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

All right, fantastic. Go ahead and ask your question. 

Mayor Dane White: 

So my point is, with that being said, I represent the fourth-largest city in the county, where 
the average household income is $30,000 below the county average. If my residents, in large 
part, are construction workers traveling throughout the county are being charged for every 
mile that they drive and that money cannot be used to be reinvested back into those roads, 
that seems pretty inequitable to me. So I just wanted to make that point and hope we can 
find something that works for all cities, not just a few. 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Okay. [inaudible]? 
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Vice Chair Sean Elo-Rivera: 

Thank you, Chair. I just wanted to pivot back. I appreciated your comments. Recognizing 
exactly as you said the way that different comments can land with different folks. I also did 
not hear a chastising of the board and I think it's really important that staff can speak directly 
with the board about when we are and are not staying on track with what we have to do. 
And if we respond in a way that makes them feel like every time they are direct with us, 
there's going to be blow back. 

We're going to have staff that's walking on eggshells, and we are dealing with highly 
technical issues, with legal requirements, and this whole thing's going to get screwed up. 
And so I think that there's a necessity for decorum and for respect amongst the board, 
amongst the board to staff, to staff to board. I also don't want to create a culture or 
environment of folks not feeling like they can say, "Look, we're going... It's an important road 
that you're traveling down, but it's not the road that we need to in order to end up at the 
destination that we have to for this particular conversation." 

I think that staff has done a really good job of that. And I haven't been here for that long, but I 
was here last year, and as Mayor Kranz mentioned, this issue was used to bludgeon this 
agency over the better part of, we're going on almost two years now. And so I think that's 
important context for any response from staff or other board members when this 
conversation is happening. Because while your questions and comments might be on the up 
and up, the reality is that not all of them have been. 

And there has been a lot of... I won't even go down the rest of that path. But I just want to add 
that context, I want to support the chair's comments, and I really, really hope that we can 
appreciate staff's responsibility to be direct with us when we are talking about technical 
issues and legal requirements. The last thing that I'll mention, it's important to note what 
Coleen had said there. Ultimately, we are the board and we will have policymaking authority 
to determine how equitable the way any revenue that we bring in is utilized. I'll conclude 
there, Chair. Thank you. 

Chairwoman Nora Vargas: 

Thank you. With that, we're going to go ahead and close the public hearing. Thank you 
everyone for your feedback. Continue to process this and then we're going to go ahead and 
move forward. We have a focus in how we're going to go and do the next steps.  

 

 



   

 

Attachment C: Public Participation 46 

Web, Workshop and Email Comments 

Web Comments 

Shannon Biggs Thank you for getting rid of the Road Use Tax. I was worried about the impact it would have on our blue 
collar workers who have to use vehicles transportation. 

 

Carla Pekin please announce meetings well in advance. Please hold meetings at a time when people can actually 
attend. Not work day hours. 

 

Paul Lindsey The amendment states, "result in a net decrease in revenues from $173 billion identified in the  
2021 Regional Plan to $165 billion. This revenue would still be sufficient to fund the  
anticipated $163 billion of planned transportation improvements included in the  
2021 Regional Plan." If the income without the road usage charge was sufficient to pay for the 2021 
Regional Plan without reductions, then why was the RUC even included? This calls into question the 
entire methodology used to calculate the funding requirements. Is SANDAG simply cooking the numbers 
to make it work? 

 

Alejandro Ortega Jr Removing the RUC is necessary, it seems that the organization has not taken into account, nor reviewed, 
data on the cost of living and how many residents within San Diego County commute for employment. 
While San Diego is not Los Angeles in size, we are still a vast area. I, myself, commute from Oceanside to 
Miramar and the initially proposed RUC would've added a significant strain to my situation on top of 
already high gas prices (which have always been historically higher than the rest of the nation), high 
rent/mortgage prices and for any parents, high cost of daycare expenses. You cannot add additional costs 
to residents by saying that they now have to pay a per mile tax to just go to work and for daily lives, that is 
unethical. My proposal that has always been a lingering question is why aren't county officials researching 
public transportation systems that are on the east coast. It's understandable that we cannot have 
subways due to our regional geographical setup, but rail systems that are above ground work. When say 
in above ground, not cutting traffic off on regular roads, but above the roads.  
 
Yes, ANY project is going to cost money, but, and this may be a personal rant, officials need to understand 
and estimate that while initial costs may be high, the long term effect is providing a reliable and 
sustainable public transportation system that will allow more residents to use public transportation and 
reduce traffic congestion and our carbon footprint. Making it easier for residents to get from North 
County to South County without having to take 4 hours is something many have been asking for years. 
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Morgen Ruby Page 7, titled "The Challenges" - it is unclear if these infographics represent regional or national data, such 
as stated in the pedestrian fatalities statistic. Can you add either a footnote or embed in the text, for 
example "only 12% of residents ~in the region~ live within..." to help put the numbers into perspective? 

 

Public advocate, 
retired 

As a prior activist for environmental oversight, I see San Diego unelected board making decisions for 
bureaucrats who prepare todays imagining for the future. There will be no future as Los Angeles and San 
Francisco with San Diego following in their footsteps. Failed leadership abounds as we look at tomorrow’s 
vision of creating division among the people with some bureaucrat’s opinion of equity. Having San Diego 
to carry the burden of Mexico’s open cesspools who pollute our beaches when they have a Trillion-dollar 
budget, but they come beg for help while our leadership falls for it every time a meeting is held at Tijuana 
River Valley Regional Park. Mexico has yet to set a Net Zero target, Mexico is the second-largest 
greenhouse gas (GHG) emitter in Latin America and the Caribbean. The reduction of fossil fuels when 
there is no alternative but an ancient grid. The infrastructure of our streets are in decay and held together 
with patch work that fails as it rains. The homeless programs and shelters fail at accountability. As a native 
San Diegan and a once democrat supporter, Fix todays problems and not leave it for some bureaucrat in 
the future is there is any. It’s all about money and following the tribe of destroy and rebuild, yet they never 
created anything themselves. So, what is our elected officials doing? But delegating their responsibilities 
to bureaucrats who are not held accountable of how they are destroying our once beautiful city piece by 
piece. They appear and disappear and deny during voting  time. 

 

Brooks Rogers I think the proposed RUC would have been hard to implement and can see why it had so much 
pushback.  I do agree, however, that everyone who uses our roads should be paying to maintain them 
and that can not happen purely through a gas tax. 
  
My suggestion is to achieve this through the use of more tollways in the region.  Tollways are especially 
useful in the SNDAG region because so much of our traffic is just passing through between LA and 
Mexico.  The addition of more tollways would allow us to charge those who use SANDAG region roads in 
direct proportion to how much they use those roads.  Like Delaware we would be collecting a lot of toll 
money from people who are just passing through and would not normally have to stop at our gas stations 
to pay gas tax or skip out on a RUC if it did exist. 
  
An added benefit of more toll roads is that it would encourage people to use other forms of transportation 
such as busses, trolleys, and bikes. 
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------------- 
  
Completely unrelated, lets remove the 163 through Balboa park and replace it with a trolley line that 
would connect all the way to Convoy Street!  Would give us a trolley stop in Balboa Park, rid the park of 
the road noise and pollution, connect convoys to better public transit options as that area is built up with 
more residential units. 

Peter Adams I am opposed to the Road User's Tax. Especially as it doesn't appear to fund road maintenance and 
expansion. I am also opposed to unelected bureaucrats pushing new fees/taxes on tax payers. Sandag 
and Carb should be disbanded/eliminated/reorganized. Their mission should be facilitate efficient 
movement in and about the region, not to milk the citizens to accomplish their misguided goals. 

 

Sharon  Instead of imposing a mileage tax SANDAG should be pressuring the local and state governments to drop 
gas taxes and let federal taxes be used for new types of transportation infrastructure. Toll roads are better 
and less invasive of personal liberties. Plus they are not conducive to being hacked as individual devices in 
each vehicle. 

 

Marc Hobelman While I understand that the RUC was largely unpopular with the public and with regional leadership, I am 
disappointed that it's being replaced by measures that only barely still meet the GHG emissions goals of 
the state. We had a strong, ambitious, sustainable direction in the original plan! But the compromise will 
add years and years of additional car dependency and auto-oriented development pattern to our region. 
There isn't a suggestion I have that can make this amendment work better from my perspective on San 
Diego's future. The only thing I can suggest is to not include the amendment at all. 
 
I'm disturbed that the political pressure has resulted in this compromise where the projections now 
include more emissions, more VMT, worse air quality, worse transit ridership, and worse fiscal standing in 
the future. Those adjusted projections are explicit in the amendment, but they leave out crucial knock-on 
effects. Reducing VMT would not only make our region environmentally and economically more 
sustainable by the metrics listed here, but it would compound the benefits associated with less car 
dependency. Parking pressures, auto traffic, street noise, pedestrian safety, community connection, and 
local business foot traffic would all improve if we are bold enough to enact incentives to change travel 
mode behaviors. 
 
We can't acquiesce to only do popular, incremental, half-measure at a time moves in a climate 
catastrophe. We have to do as much as we can as fast as we can. I thought it was bold and impressive 
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when the initial plan asked our fellow citizens to step up and work together to achieve big things. This 
amendment reveals that we might not be the world leaders our generation is demanding us to be. 

James Anderson I think sandag should be dissolved. I don't think city mayor's should be deciding regional projects or 
assessing taxes and fees to a region. Getting elected to an office doesn't make them smart. As far as a use 
tax , that's unrealistic for this region. How will visitors from out of state be charged? There is no fair way to 
implement this. Get rid of sandag now. 

 

Charlotte Kingston I am against the proposed amendment for a mileage tax.  As a senior, my social and lifelong learning 
events require independence to travel the county.  On a fixed income, we are already feeling the effects of 
higher fuel costs that include more taxes than in most other states.  It is imperative that we are able to 
pursue our interests until we are no longer able without more taxation. 

 

Jacob Finnell I oppose the removal of the road user charge. Adopting the charge will make San Diego a leader in 
 
1) Disincentivizing driving & 
2) Raising funds for transit projects 
 
Both of which are critical for achieving our climate goals, as well as advancing mobility for all San Diegans. 

 

Nancy Goldstein I appreciate the opportunity to comment about the proposed driving/road tax. I have lived in San Diego 
for 45 years after relocating from New York. It’s been a wonderful city and I’m very proud to live here! 
However, this initiative to tax people for our given right to drive on the roads we already pay taxes for is 
absolutely ludicrous. It’s already an extremely expensive city to live in and many people are leaving San 
Diego and California due to the cost of living and won’t be able to retire here either. I’m totally against the 
idea of taxing our citizens and hard working people for something we’re already paying taxes for in 
several was with the high gas tax, toll roads, etc. Also, we should be able to drive our vehicles without 
being tracked, or paying extra money! Please do the right thing for the people of San Diego and of 
California by NOT allowing this absurd RUC proposal to be voted into law. Thank you 

 

Robert Scott Please include in your long-term plans a bike and pedestrian undercrossing along Carmel Valley Road at 
Interstate 5, connecting the Carmel Valley neighborhoods east of the freeway to the Los Penasquitoe 
Lagoon and Torrey Pines reserve areas and beach west of the freeway.  
 
Without a direct connect from eastbound SR56 to northbound I-5, bicyclists and pedestrians effectively 
travel on a major highway between El Camino Real and the I-5, a very hazardous condition for the 
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bicyclists and pedestrians alike. The walk to the beach would otherwise be lovely except for this area of 
pending motorist-pedestrian conflicts. 
 
Kilroy was supposed to forward the design plans for an extension of the SR56 bike path under the I-5 as a 
condition of approval for the One Paseo project and I do not know the status or exact requirements of 
that condition.  
 
Please don't miss this opportunity, it looks like it could have happened with the I-5 widening project (like 
the new paths in Solana Beach and Encinitas) so let's not let that happen again. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Bob Scott, PhD 

Alan Feingold Cars are here to stay. Please stop pretending that people will give up their vehicles and take up biking. 
Not going to happen. To improve traffic flow, coordinate traffic signals. A red light at each intersection 
helps no one. Stop with the “road diets”. Keep lanes the proper width. Roundabouts may be engineers 
dreams but drivers hate them. Stop taking away traffic lanes to add bike lanes. We have enough. Maybe 
too many. Enforce traffic laws for bikers. They regularly run red lights and pay no attention to cars or 
pedestrians. We need age minimums (16?) for e-bikes. Bikers must be licensed and bikes-both electric 
and not-need easily seen license plates. To replace revenue lost from electric vehicles, they need an 
annual road-use fee or a per-mile fee or both. Gas/diesel vehicles pay a road tax with every gallon of fuel. 
Electric vehicles are getting a free ride. They need to pay their fair share. 

 

Carla Pekin 

 

I do not in anyway approve of the road usage charge. It must be removed 

 

 

G. King Stop increasing our taxes during this recession / depression.  NO Mileage Tax!!!  People are struggling to 
pay bills as Feds print unbacked currency & steal from our devalued savings through 4 to 9% inflation.  WE 
DON'T HAVE MONEY TO SPARE! 

 

G. King YOUR CEO IS STEALING TAXES BY LAVISH DINNERS & BOOZE BILLS.  
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G. King “Taxpayers Pony Up for Transit Systems They'll Never Use, 
The median resident of Southern California takes zero transit trips annually, and only 2 percent of the 
region's population frequently uses mass transit.” 
STEVEN GREENHUT  reason.com  7.7.2023  
 
Lethal Danger from gangs, crazy homeless & aggressive dogs 
Unsanitary with homeless' & dogs' pee & poop 
Respiratory Viruses, TB, lice, Hepatitis, MRSA  
Strikes, walk-outs, & sick-outs by drivers & mechanics shut it down 
20 minute drive becomes a 2 1/2 hr ordeal 
Need pre-purchased tickets or exact change 
"...'Road diets' that increase congestion by reducing the number of traffic lanes in a silly quest to prod us 
into abandoning our cars. 
 'equity platforms' to promoting affordable housing. 
...The Caltrans future blueprint is more about battling greenhouse-gas emissions than creating bus 
systems that arrive on time and freeways that are less congested. It's a long mish-mash of politically 
correct goals, bolstered by legislation that treats customer concerns as a side issue." 

 

G. King You broke your commitment to build more single car freeway lanes when we passed the last county tax 
increase for roads.  YOU LIE TO OUR FACES. 

 

G. King When epidemics, terrorists, gangs, homeless crazies, get on the bus, train or trolley, then I want my car.  
YOU DON"T GET ON THOSE EITHER!!! 

 

G. King NO TAXATION WITHOUT REPRESENTATION!  San Diego & Chula Vista unfairly dominate SANDAG.  North 
County gets nothing.  Disband SANDAG! 

 

G. King Mileage tax requires you track our movements like a creepy stalker.  My privacy is not any of your 
business.   NO MILEAGE TAX, it makes you look like communist dictators. 

 

Michael LaDouceur Comment 1: It is inappropriate and irresponsible to update future revenue (Updated revenue assumption 
3 in particular) while failing to update future costs.  Cost estimates were based on costs in 2020 dollars.  It 
is unclear whether inflation was factored into the cost estimates provided in Appendix U.  Inflation over 
the last 2 years has been historically high and could have a large impact on whether the cost estimates 
from 2020 are still reasonable.  As such, it is inappropriate to compare updated Transnet revenue 
(updated with the most recent data) with outdated cost estimates.  Therefore, it is unsupported and 
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incorrect to state that revenues would exceed costs under the proposed amendment.  It is also 
unsupported and incorrect to state that “no changes to projects listed in the 2021 Regional Plan would 
result from the proposed Amendment”, because no such analysis has been completed.  SANDAG has the 
fiscal responsibility to update the 2020 cost estimates to ensure that both revenues and costs are using 
similar projections.   
 
Comment 2:  SANDAG has not provided reasonable justification for updating the State Discretionary 
Program estimates and Federal Discretionary Program estimates.  SANDAG should provide justification 
for the estimates.  Has SANDAG or other local or regional transit agencies received increased funding 
since the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) was passed?  Are there reasonably foreseeable dollars that 
will be coming from BIL and how is SANDAG certain of this?  Appendix V of Attachment A to the Errata 
states that Federal funding “assumes one large New Starts eligible project and three Small Starts eligible 
projects per decade…”, but it is unclear how these assumptions were made and whether they are 
reasonable. These assumptions are critical to balancing revenues and cost and implementing all aspects 
of the 2021 Regional Plan.  Future transportation plans could be significantly altered if these assumptions 
are incorrect, which would lead to other calculations being incorrect, such as the projected decrease in 
Green House Gasses. 

Alex Wong I commend SANDAG for removing the road user charge from the RTP. While I support SANDAG's 
continual quest to invest more on transit instead of on freeways, a road user charge could actually 
prematurely drum up NIMBY opposition against mass transit when road user charges are levyed before 
massively improving San Diego's frankly low-frequency, inconvenient transit. 
 
Consider this: Canadian cities like Vancouver and Calgary do not have VMT taxes or congestion pricing 
but have achieved over quadruple the per-capita transit ridership of San Diego. These cities realize that 
it's important to first optimize transit service to maximize ridership, to give motorists a great alternative to 
driving before levying road user charges.  
 
I never expect transit to be profitable. I support sales taxes like Let's Go San Diego's initiative to raise funds 
for transit. These sales taxes, unlike road user charges, do not involve data/location privacy issues and 
therefore are much less controversial. 
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Stephanie Kaupp SANDAG's Regional Plan does not provide realistic options for decreasing the traffic to and from 
Coronado or the other military bases in San Diego. SANDAG needs to work more closely with City officials 
and the military to create more viable, cost effective transportation plans that include the health and 
safety of residents and our military personnel. One solution for Coronado would be for the Navy to provide 
additional single room housing units on base, at NASNI, the Amphibious Base and Training Center for 
active duty military personnel. The Navy currently provides shuttle services on base at NASNI, and could 
expand services between the other two bases in Coronado. This would help relieve at least a small 
percentage of the volume of traffic impacting Coronado and the lives of our military personnel,  
Additional options and better use of taxpayer funds would be to build several parking structures for all 
military personnel and contractors working at the shipyards and San Diego bases with continuous 
electric shuttle services to and from. And additional ferry services to NASNI and the shipyard from San 
Diego, and new services from Pt. Loma, Chula Vista and National City. The use of mobility hubs and MTS 
buses won't reduce the use of vehicles due to conflicts with schedules and requirements for the need of a 
personal vehicle. More than 100,000 cars every work day continue to cross the Coronado bridge with the 
majority of vehicles traveling to and from the military bases located in Coronado. And with the Navy's 
plans to increase the pier-side maintenance for three aircraft carriers being in port at the same time from 
29 days per year to an "average" of 180 days per year the volume of traffic will increase exponentially. 
Coronado residents respect the work and demands placed on our military and also want to reduce the 
traffic gridlock, and protect the safety of drivers, bike riders and pedestrians sharing our streets. Additional 
options in the Regional Plan need to be explored, and foolish and dangerous options such as adding a 
bike lane on the Coronado bridge need to be removed from the Regional Plan. Health and safety must be 
the number one priority along with more realistic and creative ways to spend our taxpayer dollars on 
transportation plans that work with our current roadway systems, landmass restrictions, protect our 
environment, public health and welfare. 

 

Truth  Getting rid of the Road User Charge Tax out of the SANDAG 2021 Regional Plan was great. But here’s why 
the entire SANDAG Regional Plan is still horrible: 
• It cost $1.5 million just to remove the Road User Charge. 
• The 3.3 cents Per Mile Road User Charge was fraudulently suggested as necessary, when it wasn’t. 
• Even without the “Regional” Road User Charge, there is still a State Road User Charge coming. 
• There is No guaranteed funding for this plan, and SANDAG is already operating with over $2.4 billion in 
Long-Term Debt. 
• The original 2021 Regional Plan met the California Air Resources Board’s 19% GHG reduction target, but 
the SANDAG Board of Directors was told it didn’t just because a select few didn’t want to round up the 
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18.6%.  
• There has never been discussion as to the details of why there is a GHG reduction goal. Is it to reduce 
warming temperatures? If so, by how much? If not, then is the goal cleaner air? If so, what is the 
measuring tool? 
• The Real goal of this Regional Plan has always been about Controlling Mobility – it doesn’t matter if it’s a 
traditional car or a new expensive and combustible lithium-based electric car. The admitted goal of this 
Regional Plan, via the State of California and funded by the Federal Government, is to reduce Vehicle 
Miles Traveled.  
• TransNet Taxes on drivers are being used towards bike lanes and pedestrian projects. That’s taxation 
without representation. 
• There are going to be 800 miles of Managed Toll Lanes. 
• Hasan Ikhrata admitted that there will not be any new highways or lanes when that’s what would 
actually help trip times, congestion, and air quality. 
• SANDAG talks about “Shorter Boarding Times, Faster Travel Times, and More Frequent Transit”, but only 
1-3% of people even use public transit! And according to SANDAG Deputy CEO Coleen Clementson, the 
trolley only goes 20MPH, and there’s not even enough public transit drivers as it is!  
• The 2021 Regional Plan approved on December 10, 2021 reads:  
“[Smart Cities with]…a High Concentration of people…  
…Microtransponder ownership of 100% by 2035.  
Converting existing…lanes to Managed [Toll] Lanes. … Substantially Increasing the Price of Parking [and] 
the Cost of Driving. 
The system…[means no] No new highways or general…lanes.  
More than 93% of housing…will be Multi-Family [stack-and-packs]… 
Residential Parking Permit… 
…[Our] GHG Reduction Goals will Require…Fundamental Transformations in the Economic, Social, 
Technological, and Political Fabric of Life in California and Beyond... 
Government…Regulating Economic Activities and Personal Behaviors…” 
• Based on that above information, there will still be microtransponders in everyone’s cars to track their 
trips for “Vehicle Miles Traveled” fee or “Vehicle Hours Traveled Fees”. 
• Hasan Ikhrata, who admitted to blocking the Audit, had a charge of over $300 worth of taxpayer money 
on a dinner with Lorena Gonzalez and Nathan Fletcher at Donovan’s Steakhouse, while getting paid over 
$580,000 a year, and now finally resigning, is the one who pushed this Totalitarian Regional Plan, openly 
admitting that it’s about “Behavior Change” – not saving the environment from GHGs. 
• SANDAG is working to implement the Totalitarian United Nations’ 2030 Agenda, as overtly expressed in 
the joint February meeting with SANDAG, Mexico, and UN Habitat. This agenda includes making sure 
people are stacked-and-packed into high-density Smart Cities away from suburban and rural areas, 
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Web Comments 

discouraging what the UN calls “sprawl” and “human settlements”. Based on that joint meeting, there 
seems to be an idea to create a “Bi-National Association of Governments” in order to further Consolidate 
and Expand power over Americans’ and Mexicans’ lives. 
These are a just a few reasons why this SANDAG 2021 Regional Plan – and the future 2025 Regional Plan – 
need to be disposed of into the hazardous waste bin. Short and sweet of it: Expensive, Unrealistic, 
Inequitable, Invasive, and Totalitarian. 

 

Virtual Workshop July 18, 2023 

Unknown I’m just wondering if this process has any effect on the planning for the 2025 Regional Plan.   

 

Virtual Workshop July 31, 2023 

Alex Wong Yeah, can you hear me? I would just like to make it clear that, I thought that the difference between the 
Draft 2021 RTP and the 2021 RTP final version was the purple line frequencies would increase from every 
10 minutes to every 5 minutes during the peak hours. I just wanted to confirm if that was true, and if so, I 
would strongly recommend reverting back to 5 minute frequencies because I believe that the purple 
line, you know, put that there. I mean, we definitely need to. Hi everybody. I thought that the purple line 
now had a 10 minute frequency rather than a 5 minute frequency.  

Original Dra I am curious to know if you guys are aware of the UN agenda plan to enslave the people in 15 minute 
cities? 

Original Dra I find it interesting that you guys don't want to answer that question when Nora Vargas is going to the 
UN and getting awards for UN Habitat BS. And then you have Hasan who is going and getting awarded 
for attending some metropolis stuff. And they're all pushing this stuff in the community listening to 
globalists tell them what's best for the people in San Diego. And when I am asking you a question, that is 
not a comment. That's a question that you, if you're not aware of what you're pushing, you need to find 
out because there are 15 min cities coming down the pipe that they are pushing. And all of the things 
that you are going on with SANDAG and their whole, you know, push for al of this climate BS. Because 
you guys won't even look at stuff that is going on with the environment like you're sitting here claiming 
that you want to protect the environment and your plans and doing all these things. Yet at the end of 
the day, the things that you're pushing are actually not good for the environment and they aren't 
healthy for people. Like electric vehicles have these lithium batteries that are combustible and can 
recombust just from fumes and they're not recyclable just to make them. They're totally toxic to the 
environment and the people and nobody wants to acknowledge that. That's why when you guys are 
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sitting here selling people that you're pushing some kind of plan. You need to be honest with the people 
and tell them what agenda this is, because it's the UN's agenda, the World Economic Forum agenda, all 
of these globalist elites who don't care about the people and are pushing them into 15 minute smart city 
enslavements. And it's all under the guise of like protecting the environment. And all we do is sit here 
and push that, but then it's like, we don't talk about the radiation that comes from these changing 
stations that are going to be set out to be everywhere. Or the vehicles that emit as well. SO as you're 
sitting here and you're telling me that you can't answer a question like that or that it's just a comment. 
It's not a joke. You should know what you are pushing. The people that you are letting push you to do 
these things. I mean, cause do, do you know that Nora got an award for engaging with the UN? I mean, 
and that's sad. So if you don't know that, you need to be doing your own due diligence and either 
listening to the people that come forward and tell you things that may seem crazy, but you need to look 
into. Because it's very serious, and this is a totalitarian takeover and you may think oh she's crazy and I 
don't really care because I'm here to blow the whistle and tell people what's really going on and not just 
like go along to get along. Because what's happening in this county is very, very disturbing. And people 
are so asleep. Because of what happened with COVID, they think that that's just it and you guys are 
coming in hot, you're taking away all of these freedoms that people have been acting like we're 
progressing when we're actually regressing and like going back in time. Because if we were like moving 
forward in the future, you know, it would be flying in cars. We wouldn't go back to walking and biking. 
And making sure that people are within a 15 min zone of everything, you know, just for the climate. We 
were building metropolises around all these areas and it's very sad that people don't see it and it's sad 
that you guys don't even know who you are engaging with, yet you're pushing this agenda. And then 
when somebody comes out and ask you if you know anything about it. You want to shut them up and 
be like, well, that's just a comment, and I can't answer. Well, you should be able to answer it. And if you 
don't know what I'm talking about, you need to go and do some research. Because the United Nations 
ain't no joke, you know the real. And what they have planned for the people ain't no joke either. And 
they're in bed with some really nefarious people. And so if you don't want to be under the same light, 
then you need to get out of that umbrella under them and start thinking on your own instead of 
pushing their agenda.  



   

 

Attachment C: Public Participation 57 

Alex Wong Ridership reduce emissions and reduces traffic, and San Diego's airport needs the people mover on an 
airport trolley branch. Actually, between today and the little town at the bottom, that's both the green 
and blue line. NPS proposes to keep piggy backing on on their airport trolley branch and grant all 
protectors in the blue and green lines between Penn State and Middle Town. The problem is that 
[unintelligible] past the 20 minutes per hour. The blue and green lines need to have 8 trains per hour per 
directive or 15 trains combined with about 7.5 minute frequency. Within Valley and University City. These 
communities at least 15 trains per hours. Well, at least the airport trolley only 4 trolleys per hours can 
make that 15 minute frequency. There's the next slide. We need people movers like in the downtown 
that provide a 4 minute frequency. Travelers can be to the airport in 15 minutes. It's not what's supposed 
to happen in the airport trolley branch. Because operation costs for higher drivers and simple probably 
to use automated company for drivers. That's why we need to connect the airport and downtown with 
an automated people mover. By people mover I do not mean speculative technology. I mean proven, 
high tech that could carry over 300 people.  Think the APM not that the airport peoplemover, but just as 
in our system and in the system of light rail. My group is even for being perfectly a lot more people 
needed. And APM will run every 4 minutes versus calling every 15 [unintelligible]. And this one is a space 
for both pedestrians and the car. If you know, I would accept more only by taking that step up. First of all, 
APM would not disrupt existing airport service. Compared to the Poly, the aerial, and the APM would at 
least be built on much better operations. That's why I strongly support APM and recommend an aerial 
people mover only. It's the most cost effective option, it's the lowest cost per mile. And yes, there, of 
course, some people may, they complain that aerial structures block views. And poly will probably block 
even more views because they have directory systems and those or, usually [unintelligible] overhead 
wires.  

Francisco Ortiz How will the likely conversion of the state gas tax to a RUC mileage tax affect the region's decisions to 
remove the RUC from the Regional Plan? Could it impact the region and the local jurisdictions eligiblity 
to see federal and state funding? 

 
Email Comments 

Debbie Bergquist I would like to respond to the 2021 Regional Plan. I am not in agreement with the road tax. I do not feel 
we need huge improvements in mass transportation.  We do not need four bike lanes and only one car 
lane per direction on a street. 
I do not feel safe on mass transportation. This is a car driven society and always will be.  Think about 
improvements for the freeways and street improvements for traffic flow. We already increased taxes in 
Solana Beach for road improvements and pot holes.  What has happened to that money? Why are there 
individuals at super markets trying to get individuals to sign a petition for repairs on pot holes when it is 
really for another new tax? 
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Steven Smith I am on your email list and received an announcement about a virtual meeting regarding the regional 
plan.  I am unable to attend but have some thoughts about how best to spend my tax money on 
transportation. First, I would like for you spend the money on projects already promised regarding 
freeway and highway improvements.  I do not use public transportation, I do not want to use public 
transportation, I desire to be able to continue driving my own vehicle on roads that are maintained and 
improved to first class standards.  I certainly don't think it is asking too much for you to construct the 
projects promised with revenues previously collected that will improve our streets and highways. 
Second, I have a problem getting my head around construction of more public transportation projects 
that do not pay for themselves with the fares charged users.  I understand there are some State laws 
mandating certain efforts to address climate change but I don't think you should just roll over and 
figuratively "throw under the bus" those of us desiring to continue to use our own vehicles and force us 
onto public transportation. Finally, I absolutely reject any idea of a mileage tax for persons choosing to 
drive on existing roads and highways.  That is one of the most preposterous proposals I've ever heard.  
Find some way for electric vehicle drivers to pay their fair share.  They certainly are not paying gas tax.  I 
most certainly pay gas tax.  On some level it is unfair for EV drivers to avoid this cost of operating a 
vehicle on public roads funded with gas tax. 

Steve, Chair of 
NPPC 

Good morning,  
The North Park Planning Committee is in the process of updating its CIP priority list for North Park. We 
would love to work with sandag on this update to ensure we are aligned. If you could provide input or a 
point of contact to work with that would be outstanding. 

John Wotzka A recent look at fires in shipping of EVs from Far Eastern manufactures, should be looked at by the Port 
Authority and the consequences  on insurance companies and training of firefighters in fires involving 
Li-ion batteries  will also be an issue. Hydrogen fueled cars will need to be reviewed too.    

John Wotzka The new Navy headquarters looks good.  There are  a lot of new high rise buildings going up downtown 
and we should see how higher speed rail will feed into the Harbor Drive and high rise building culture in 
the downtown future too, which is in the long term planning. Mayor Todd Gloria is hoping for a new city 
hall too. Offshore wind is picking up some interest and we should see if there will be any of it south of 
the border or into the Bay Front area. These are all long term and will need to be planned into the new 
city look. 

Dwight Worden, 
City 
Councilmember, 
City of Del Mar 

I have reviewed the draft Amendment to the 2021 RTP and offer the following comments, speaking only 
for myself and not necessarily for my city or my council colleagues: 
 
1. I believe it was and is a mistake to remove the Regional RUC from the RTP, but I also understand that 
its removal was the direction given by the SANDAG Board. In that context the staff and draft 
Amendment do a good job of backfilling the Regional RUC removal. The Regional RUC only accounts for 
a bit less than 9% of the total estimated RTP cost of $163 billion and the Amendment shows how the 
Plan can still proceed. 
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2. I note that the RTP Amendment acknowledges that a state RUC is still in the works, and I hope that 
SANDAG will follow that process and that the Plan can be further adapted to accommodate a state RUC 
if one is enacted, or a resurrected Regional RUC. 
3. I am attaching a copy of an op/ed I wrote in the U.T in December of 2022 explaining my reasons for 
supporting inclusion of the Regional RUC in the RTP. This is still my position 

Mary Davis 1. NO TO *ANY* ROAD USAGE CHARGE, ROAD CHARGE, MILEAGE TAX, ETC. - EVER! Both SANDAG and 
the State of California need to find other mechanisms to fund our roads (i.e., vehicle registration 
surcharge, Point-of-Sale or Point-of-Charge system, etc.)  
 
2.  WE REJECT THE PARADIGM SHIFT THAT BOTH SANDAG AND THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA ARE 
TRYING TO IMPLEMENT - going from a Public Benefit model of funding our roads & infrastructure to a 
'User Pays' system which inevitably will involve telematics and tracking (regardless of whether the 
government does it directly or uses a 3rd-party entity.) #PrivacyJustice 
 
3.  NO TO ANY TOLLS OR NEW FEES, CHARGES, ETC. You are openly advocating to retire the SR-125 
Southbay Express toll early, yet hypocritically wanting to impose them elsewhere. NO NO NO to any tolls 
anywhere! 
 
4.  RESTRUCTURE/GET RID OF THE WEIGHTED VOTE. No matter how many Retreats you hold with feel-
good exercises, the weighted vote is a cudgel to wield control. You can utilize your 'Thumbs up/Thumbs 
down/Thumbs sideways' gimmick all you want, but as long as you have & use the weighted vote, you're 
saving the covert but most telling gesture for last ... middle finger(s) up as you flip the bird to most of the 
other members.  
 
5.  FIRE HASAN IKHRATA & REPLACE HIM WITH A MODERATE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR WHO TRULY 
KNOWS HOW TO (& ACTUALLY WILL) BUILD RELATIONAL BRIDGES TO WORK WITH *ALL* PEOPLE. 
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OPINION

Guest commentary: The road user charge has a place
in our future transportation planning — at least for
now

(File photo)

BY DWIGHT WORDEN

DEC. 2, 2022 2:56 PM PT

This guest commentary presents my personal opinions and does not necessarily reflect

the views of my city or city council colleagues. (1, see bottom)
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We need to reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions: San Diego needs to

reduce GHG emissions for our future survival and quality of life, and to avoid severe

state and federal penalties if we don’t. Transportation is the largest source of GHG

emissions in our region at about 40% so we need to work on that sector.

The solution is a revamped transportation system: SANDAG has a

comprehensive plan (2, see bottom) to do just that. It includes road and freeway

projects, new rail service, improved bus service, accommodation for autonomous

vehicles, support for electric vehicles, transit to serve work and other commuters, first

and last mile options, bicycle and walking projects, environmental enhancements, and

more. It will reduce our GHG emissions and meet local, state, and federal requirements.

It will improve transportation options for everybody, reduce commute times, improve

air quality, reduce congestion, and improve all aspects of our quality of life.

The challenge is money: What does it cost and how will we pay for it? $160 billion

over the next 30 years is the cost estimate. Before you choke on that number, recognize

that it is estimated that climate change left unaddressed will cost the U.S. $2 trillion per

year (3, see bottom). So, think of the RTP in terms of its avoided costs. From a cost

benefit point of view it’s our least expensive option.

Payment strategies proposed in the RTP include a series of 1 or ½ cent sales tax ballot

measures, use of TRANSNET funds, and federal and state funds. Nobody likes more

taxes, but they will be subject to vote on the ballot. San Diego County voters already,

twice, approved TRANSNET taxes to improve our transportation system. San Diegans

know how to vote “yes” for a good plan and we know how to vote “no” on a bad one.

The Road User Charge or RUC. The RUC has garnered more attention than it

deserves. Of the $160 billion RTP price tag the RUC would account for only about $14

billion or 9%. So, what is it and why is it so controversial?

A RUC is a charge by mile to use the road system.



—Current gas taxes are a RUC. While we may not call it a RUC, current gas taxes

(5.6% or about 54 cents a gallon at current prices) are a form of RUC. You pay these

taxes every time you fill up for the right to drive our road systems. The funds are used to

improve and maintain our roads. The more you drive the more you pay. Toll roads are

also a current form of RUC. RUCs are not new.

Problems with gas taxes.

—We are transitioning to electric vehicles. Transitioning away from gas to EV

cars and trucks is a good thing. But, EVs don’t buy gas so they don’t pay gas taxes.

Currently, they use the road system for free. Gas taxes to build and repair roads are

declining and are not a sustainable source to take care of our roads.

—Gas taxes are inequitable. Even used EVs are expensive. It is the well healed who

can afford Teslas and other EVs. It’s the middle class and working poor who are stuck

paying gas taxes with older, poor mileage, gas burners. Why would we burden this

sector with the sole cost of road maintenance? That’s wrong on many levels.

The solution: Replace gas taxes by transitioning to a system where

everyone, including EVs, pays as they drive. That’s called a Road User

Charge.

—Such a system restores equity and sustainability. EV drivers and gas burners all pay to

maintain our road system based on how much they use the road system. That’s

sustainable and it’s fair.

—Gas taxes will continue to decline as more and more EVs take to the road. Those taxes

need to be replaced if we value our road systems. Some type of RUC can be the answer.

Done right, the overall cost to drive will go down as we replace gas taxes with lower user

charges under a system where everyone pays a fair share including wealthy EV drivers.



—Nobody supports the current gas tax system plus a RUC on top, yet that is what some

opponents would have you believe. These opponents create a straw man and then show

it no mercy! A more productive discussion addresses what is actually proposed:

developing a RUC that will work in San Diego to transition away from gas taxes to a

system where everyone pays and the overall cost of driving for everyone can go down.

The RUC in the plan is a placeholder. The RUC in the RTP is a conceptual

placeholder to pay for a small part (9%) of overall RTP costs.

—It’s only a concept. We can’t implement a RUC without state legislation that doesn’t

exist.

— If the state authorizes RUCs in the future, we will figure out the specifics of a RUC

that will work for San Diego. That’s what the RTP proposes. If we can’t build consensus

we can drop it or the voters can reject it.

— It’s a mistake to take it off the table now before we even know what it will be.

I support the RUC concept set out in the RTP. I support studying it and developing

specifics. Will I support its implementation? I can’t say until we put flesh on the

proposal. If it shows me that, overall, driver costs will come down, it is more equitable,

and is sustainable, I will support it. If not, I won’t.

Let’s be realistic. If we want to meet climate goals and avoid state and federal penalties

we need a plan like the RTP and a way to pay for it. Let’s keep the RUC on the table for

further study.

1. Dwight Worden is the current Mayor of the City of Del Mar and is a retired land use,

environmental, and government attorney.

2. The 2050 Regional Transportation Plan or RTP adopted in December 2021.



3. https://www2.deloitte.com/global/en/pages/about-deloitte/press-

releases/deloitte-research-reveals-inactionon-climate-change-could-cost-the-world-

economy-us-dollar-178-trillion-by-2070.html
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ARTS & ENTERTAINMENT

Review: Updated ‘To Kill a Mockingbird’ play makes a fierce
and powerful statement against racism

ARTS & ENTERTAINMENT

The not-so-silent nights of a John Waters Christmas

EVENTS

Solana Beach Friends of the Library to present a musical
evening

EVENTS

Dec. 1: Local and regional events
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